
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
FRIDAY, APRIL 16, 2021 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

1:00 PM 

 

APPROPRIATE FACE COVERINGS ARE REQUIRED AT ALL TIMES WHILE IN TOWN HALL. 

Roll Call 
1. Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 
2. Approval of the Agenda 

New Business 
3. Regular Minutes: June 22, 2020 

4. Riverbank Neighborhood Subdivision Application 

 

NOTE: While numbered, the following items are all part of New Business Item #4 – Riverbank 

Subdivision Application and Review and will not be individually accepted or approved 

 

5. Town Administrator Review, Recommendations, and Attachments A through D 

6. Old World LLC - Submittal Overview Letter 

7. Old World LLC - Submittal Overview Letter - With Administrator Comments 

8. Town Attorney Letter Regarding Engineer Review 

9. Initial Independent Engineering Plan Review 

10. Applicants Engineer Plan Review Including Modifications and Responses 

11. Community Member Input Letters 

12. Application Item 1 - Geotechnical Spoils Report Parts 1 through 3 

13. Application Item 2 - Sketch Plan 

14. Application Item 3 - Property Owner List 

15. Application Item 4 - Application 

16. Application Item 5 - Covenants for Neighborhood 

17. Application Item 6 - Development Review 

18. Application Item 7 - Engineering Updated Plat 

19. Application Item 8 - Preliminary & Original Final Plan 

20. Application Item 9 - Subdivision Improvements Agreement 

21. Application Item 10 - Title Commitment 

22. Application Item 11 - Drainage Report 

23. Application Item 12 - Engineering Costs 

24. Application Item 13 - Traffic Impact 

25. Application Item 14 - Proof of Ownership 

Adjournment 
  

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

3



 

April 14, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Karen Budinger: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Mary Bachran:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

4

1.



 

April 14, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Approval of the Agenda 

Summary:   
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Karen Budinger: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Mary Bachran:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

5

2.



 

April 14, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Regular Minutes: June 22, 2020 

Summary:   
Approval of regular minutes. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Karen Budinger: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Mary Bachran:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

6

3.



 

  

JUNE 22, 2020 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

June 22, 2020 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
1. Commission members present were as follows: 

Chairperson Barb Heck 

Commissioner Lucy Hunter 

Commissioner Monica Foguth 

Mayor Mary Bachran 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

 

Town staff present were as follows: 

 

Town Administrator/Town Clerk Corinne Ferguson 

Assistant to the Town Administrator Evan Bolt 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion to approve agenda as presented by Commissioner Hunter seconded by Mayor Bachran. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Unfinished Business 

 

Minutes: February 27, 2020: 

 

Motion to approve minutes as presented by Commissioner Hunter Seconded by 

Chairperson Heck. Motion failed due to lack of votes.  

 

Mayor Bachran & Trustee Budinger Abstained from voting. 

 

Minutes were tabled until the next meeting. 

New Business. 

Appointment of Chair: 

 

7

3.



 

  

JUNE 22, 2020 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Appointment of chair was tabled until next meeting.  

 

Spiegel Fence Variance: 

Fence variance documents were included in the packet.  

Motion to recommend that the Board of Trustee approve Deborah Spiegel’s fence 

variance by Commissioner Hunter second by Trustee Budinger. Motion carried una. 

 

6. Paonia Master Plan Update 

Evan Bolt updated the planning commission members regarding some of the master 

plan’s goals and objectives. 

 

Discussion points: 

 Time frame of the assett inventory - preliminary reports will be reviewed in the 

fall. 

 Land use - a public input meeting was held in early spring regarding the land use 

survey. 

 Annexation - Town of Paonia has a (3) three-mile radius to annex. 

 Master plan time frame draft documents available in July. 

 

 

Adjournment 
Adjournment: 

Chairperson Heck adjourned the meeting at 5:43 pm 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                        Barb Heck, Chairperson 

8

3.



 

March 23, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Riverbank Neighborhood Subdivision Application 

Summary:   
Concurrent preliminary and final review of the Riverbank Neighborhood Subdivision application for 
approval. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Karen Budinger: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Mary Bachran:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

9

4.



1 | P a g e  Riverbank 
Final Maj Sub March, 2021 

 

ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

04/16/2021 
 

 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CORINNE FERGUSON 

SUBJECT: PAONIA RIVERBANK NEIGHBORHOOD 

 

Ivo Renkema, on behalf of Old World, LLC, provided an initial major subdivision application and variance 

request for review with previous Administrator Knight in 2017/2018.  The process had some delays and was 

re-addressed following my assuming administrator duties in 2019.  A joint community work session with the 

planning commission and Board of Trustees was held and well-received June 4, 2020.  The primary areas of 

concern from the community during the meeting were a walking path to connect the neighborhood to the 

school property and the inclusion of sidewalks. The application was deemed substantially complete 

November 25, 2020 and applicant was so notified via e-mail. Subsequent virtual meetings, reviews, and 

correspondence ensued to bring us to date. The applicant provided updated data and responses to Town 

engineering reviews and requested the process move forward, as presented, on February 22, 2021.  Due to a 

noticing error the original planning commission review was rescheduled from March 25, 2021 to April 16, 

2021. 

See below: 

Application and Review Per Municipal Code Chapter 17 Articles 5 and 6.  

Complete application packet and fee payment. – Reviewed as submitted, deemed substantially complete 

11/25/2020. 

Deadlines for publication and notifications met. 

Requirements for Administrator submittal to Planning Commission for recommendations to the Board of 

Trustees: 

Documents submitted by applicant (Labeled Items 1 through 14) 

 

1. Geotechnical – soils report  

2. Sketch Plan  

3. List of property owners within 200’  

10

5.



2 | P a g e  Riverbank 
Final Maj Sub March, 2021 

 

4. Application 

5. Covenants for the Riverbank Neighborhood  

6. Referral letters from utility companies [Development Review] 

7. Engineering work from Odisea  

8. Preliminary Plan Reviewed for final concurrent review 

9. Subdivision Improvements Agreement  

10. Title Commitment and updated title commitment  

11. Storm-water drainage report 

12. Engineers Cost Estimate 

13. Traffic Impact Analysis  

14. Proof of Ownership 

 

(1) All such proposed parcels are divided by, or parallel to and part of the original lot, tract or parcel 

lines on the Town Plat; Refer to Proposed Site Map C2.0 - COMPLETE 

 

(2) All the proposed parcels have the applicable yard setbacks which are required for structures; 

Existing lot 1 and 2 and Proposed Lots 4 through 16 (lot 3 is required open space) are vacant – 

lot size permits development within setback requirements.  
 

(3) All of the proposed areas of the proposed parcels conform to the zoned uses and dimensional 

characteristics of lots or tracts in the applicable Zone District of the Town regulations; COMPLETE 

– Existing and Proposed Lot 1-16 retain current zoning R-2 medium density residential.  

Required minimum lot size for R-2 permitted by right is 8,000 square feet. All lots exceed 

required minimum square footage. Water and sewer taps are paid in full for lots 1 and 2 only.  

Recommendation that approvals will be contingent on the availability of water taps from the Town. 
 

(4) None of the proposed parcels violates any Section of the Town regulations; COMPLETE –

variance requests are not for parcels and will be addressed later in the report. 
 

(5) The major subdivision complies with the applicable zoning criteria in Chapter 16 Article 3; 

CORRECT (see attached Table 16-1 Schedule of Uses and Table 16-2 Schedule of Requirements 

– Residential Districts) 

 

(6) The application has been referred to all Town departments and utility companies (Development 

Review committee) for review and comment at least fifteen (15) days prior to a decision on the 

application; COMPLETE – No objections – Response from Fire Department Included, requesting 

8-inch main. Plans call for connection to existing 8-inch main. Response from Delta County 

included.  All corrections made and access application submitted to Delta County as of April 10, 

2021. 

 

Items to Consider for Planning Commission Review and Recommendation and Subsequent Board 

Approval: 

(1) Comply with all applicable zoning requirements of the zone district in which the subdivision is 

located;  

11

5.



3 | P a g e  Riverbank 
Final Maj Sub March, 2021 

 

(2) Have a front parcel line on a street only, and such parcel access shall have the following 

characteristics:  

a. Said front parcel line must be at least twenty-five (25) feet long or the minimum lot width for 

the applicable zone district, whichever is shorter;  

 

b. The vehicular access to any primary structure on a parcel shall be from a street, must be a 

minimum of twenty-five (25) feet wide along its entire length, and must be owned in fee simple 

by the owner of the parcel being accessed;  

 

(3) Provide for underground utilities upon each building site;  

(4) Provide for adequate fire and flood protection and emergency access;  

(5) Not increase the potential for breach of the public safety, or damage to public or private property 

by fire, flood or erosion;  

(6) Not create congestion, automotive or pedestrian safety problems or other traffic hazards;  

(7) To be designed in a manner that directs the placement of roads, utilities and structures away from 

any unstable soils, or mitigates the effect of unstable soils, geologic hazards, and other site conditions so as to 

minimize the potential for breach of the public safety, or damage to public or private property;  

(8) Not create significant adverse effects to public facilities, rights-of-way or utilities;  

(9) Not create significant adverse impacts on the use of adjacent property;  

(10) Otherwise be consistent and comply with the objectives purposes, conditions and requirements of 

these subdivision regulations and the zoning ordinance of the Town regulations; and  

 

Comments Specific to Applicant Letter to Planning Commission dated March 9, 2021. Please see 

additional comments included with the letter later in the packet. 

Main Points listed on page 1: 

 15 residential lots, zoned R-2, - Agreed and recommended.  

 1 open space lot, approximately 2 acres, - The lot is 1.974 acres in the current plan – this exceeds 

the   required open space area for a major subdivision unless modified for option b included in the 

packet. 

 An “evergreen buffer” between neighbors and Riverbank – Included as desired by community. 

 A newly constructed Atlantic Avenue At the suggestion of Delta County G.I.S. the proposed road 

name has been updated to Big Sky Avenue. 

 Irrigation water from Feldman and Farmers ditches – Included. No additional comments. 

 Easements for trails – included 8-ft access trail easement between lots 7 & 9 to school district 

property as desired by community. Requesting applicant consider inclusion of continuation of the trail 

easement on rear south-east portion of Riverbank lots 7, 6, & 5 to Town lot 6 for future connection to 

walking bridge to W. 4th Street near public library. 

12

5.



4 | P a g e  Riverbank 
Final Maj Sub March, 2021 

 

Having reviewed and confirmed all requirements and information provided, it is my recommendation 

to the Planning Commission and Board of Trustees the approval of Riverbank Neighborhood 

Subdivision with the following recommendations specific to variance requests: 

 Variance 1: Road width and length – Section 17-4-40 (g) cul-de-sac length and Section 17-4-50 paved 

area or right-of-way 

The Road length is approximately 1,700 ft. Code requirement is no more than 500 ft. Staff 

recommendation to approve variance – suggested modification to emergency turn around location to 

area between Riverbank lots 2 & 5 which currently have a 35 ft shared utility and ditch easement.  

This more centrally locates the emergency turn-around.  At its current location it is approximately 700 

ft beyond the maximum allowed road length.  

Variance 2: change in typical road section – Section 17-4-40 (j) 

Please see staff notes included in the summary of Final Document (Item 3) submitted by applicant.  

Staff recommendation is to deny the variance as submitted with the following caveat – Staff recognizes 

the reduction in number of developable parcels, COVID-19, and the moratorium on water tap sales 

significantly impacts the economics of the neighborhood and impending development timeline. 

Suggested modification in lieu of the variance is to defer installation of sidewalk, curb and gutter until 

such time as 50% of the parcels are sold and/or developed. Storm water runoff should be collected at 

intermittent collection boxes and piped to detention ponds identified on the plan (see C3.0). 

Should the planning commission recommend, and the Board of Trustees final approval include option B - the 

addition of one (1) lot within the open space lot 3, staff recommends the Board require no financial penalty to 

the applicant for a reduction of required open space because of the inclusion of trails and accesses in the 

proposed plan. 

Additional information: 

Secondary exit for emergency confirmed - 22 ft emergency access easement from cul-de-sac to Highway 133 

filed and recorded with Delta County Clerk’s office in 2012. 

Admin Report Attachments: 

Attachment A: Street Design and Specifications Sec.17-4-40 through 17-4-110 

Attachment B: Zoning Table 16-1 Schedule of Uses for Residential Districts 

Attachment C: Zoning Table 16-2 Schedule of Requirements for Residential Districts 

Attachment D: SGM Engineering Estimate for curb and gutter installation costs 

13

5.



Riverbank Subdivision Administrator Review Attachment A 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:24 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 1 of 6 

Sec. 17-4-40. Street design. 

(a) The street pattern shall be designed to afford safe and convenient access to all lots within the subdivision.  

(b) Streets shall have a logical relationship to the topography and be designed to be parallel to the existing 
contours as much as possible.  

(c) All streets shall intersect at right angles.  

(d) Streets or alleys shall not be closer than one hundred (100) feet from another street intersection.  

(e) Proposed streets, which are extensions of existing public rights-of-way shall be designed to effect a smooth 
transition from existing to proposed improvements and shall be named accordingly.  

(f) Where developable but unplatted land is separated by a proposed subdivision from an existing public right-
of-way, the street pattern of the proposed subdivision shall include streets extended to the boundary 
common to both tracts to prevent land locking of the unplatted tract and promote access to future 
development of adjacent unplatted land.  

(g) Dead-end streets and alleys shall be provided with a cul-de-sac with a minimum radius of fifty (50) feet. The 
maximum length of a dead-end street shall be five hundred (500) feet measured from the right-of-way line of 
the connecting street to the center of the turn-around area at the closed end of the cul-de-sac.  

(h) The minimum street gradient shall be five-tenths percent (0.5%) and the maximum street gradient shall be 
seven percent (7%) for local streets and five percent (5%) for collector and arterial streets. Except where, in 
the Town's opinion, the terrain requires a greater gradient, streets shall not exceed a gradient of four 
percent (4%) within one hundred (100) feet of an intersection. Changes in street grades shall be 
accomplished by vertical curves of sufficient length to maintain safe sight distances.  

(i) Street names. All street names shall be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission. The Planning 
Commission, subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees, may adopt a uniform street naming policy.  

(j) All public and private streets, curbs and gutters shall be laid out and graded, a base course of gravel installed 
and an asphalt wearing course installed to the full width of the traveled way, all to the specification of the 
Town's street design specifications. All alleys shall be laid out and graded, a base course of gravel installed 
and an all-weather surface installed to the full width of the traveled way, all to the specification of the 
Town's street design specifications and the Building Specifications and Standard Construction Specifications, 
as the same may be from time to time amended.  

(k) Minimum street widths and design characteristics are shown on the schedule of requirements, Table 17-1 
below.  

(l) Curbs, gutters and sidewalks are required on all streets of subdivisions.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2003-04, 8-12-2003; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

 

Sec. 17-4-50. Street design; schedule of requirements. 

The following Table sets out the requirements for street design:  

Table 17-1 
Street Design - Schedule of Requirements1 
 

14

5.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:24 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 2 of 6 

 Local Street Major and 
Minor 
Collector 

Minor 
Arterial 

Major 
Arterial 

Alleys 

Minimum right-of-way  50 ft.  60 ft.  80 ft.  100 ft.  25 ft.  

Travel lanes  2-10 ft.  2-12 ft.  2 or 4 lanes  12 ft.  25 ft.  

On-street parking 
lanes  

2-7 ft.  2-8 ft.     

Minimum pavement 
width curb to curb  

34 ft.  40 ft.  See cross-section   

Sidewalk  Attached 
curbwalk 2-
4 ft.  

Detached 2-
4 ft.  

Detached 2-
4 ft.  

Detached 2-
4 ft.  

 

Minimum radius of 
curvature  

100 ft.  300 ft.  400 ft.  600 ft.  100 ft.  

Maximum % of grade  7%  5%  5%  5%   

Radius of cul-de-sac   50 ft. 
residential  

N/A  N/A   

Minimum paved area 
right-of-way  

45 ft.  60 ft. 
commercial  

   

Bicycle path  May be 
designated 
on selected 
streets  

Selected streets may 
include required bicycle 
paths. Minimum 8-10 ft.  

  

1 These requirements apply to new developing areas and may not be applicable to older areas of the community. All 
determinations as to the applicability of these requirements shall be made by the Planning Commission.  

15

5.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:24 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 3 of 6 

 

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2003-04, 8-12-2003; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

Sec. 17-4-60. Lot and block design. 

(a) Each lot shall be designed to provide an adequate accessible building site for a structure devoted to the 
intended use of the land.  

(b) Each lot shall meet or exceed the minimum requirements of the applicable zone district regulations or PUD 
plan, whichever applies, and shall have a minimum of twenty-five (25) feet of linear footage on a dedicated 
public street if access to said lot is by a dedicated public street. For multiple-family townhouse PUDs, the 
Planning Commission may waive the required twenty-five (25) feet of frontage on a public street.  

(c) Blocks shall not exceed one thousand (1,000) feet, unless a pedestrian walkway is provided through the 
block. The walkway shall consist of a twenty-foot easement near the middle of the block.  

16

5.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:24 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 4 of 6 

 

(d) In tracts containing more than one (1) block, the blocks shall be designated in numerical order. Lots shall be 
designated numerically beginning with the number I in each block. Large tracts of land that are not further 
subdivided into lots and blocks shall be designated alphabetically beginning with the letter A. Outlots shall 
also be numbered alphabetically.  

(e) Double-frontage or through lots may be permitted, provided that access control restrictions are provided on 
the plat.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

Sec. 17-4-70. Storm drainage. 

(a) Complete drainage systems for the entire subdivision area shall be designed by a professional engineer 
licensed in the State and qualified to perform such work and shall be shown graphically. All existing drainage 
features shall be so identified. If the final plat is to be presented in phases, a general drainage plan for the 
entire area shall be presented with the first phase, and appropriate development stages for the drainage 
system for each phase shall be indicated.  

(b) The drainage plans shall be designed to permit the unimpeded flow of natural watercourses and to ensure 
adequate drainage of all low points.  

(c) Drainage plans shall include all proposed surface drainage structures and all appropriate designs, details and 
dimensions necessary to clearly explain proposed construction materials and elevations.  

(d) The drainage system shall be designed to consider the drainage basin as a whole. All new development shall 
ensure that surface runoff from the development site shall not, after development, exceed the 
predevelopment flow for the peak condition of a ten-year storm. Adequate area for retention, percolation 
and absorption of all surface runoff generated by the project shall be provided either on the site or in 
cooperation with similar developments in the vicinity. A qualified engineer shall certify such surface runoff 
control designs.  

(e) All detention ponds shall be designed so that no standing water will remain beyond five (5) days after the 
end of the storm. The design of the detention facility must include consideration of the off-site runoff based 
upon present conditions. Detention facility design shall be in conformance with the requirements of the 
Town Engineer. Design data shall include, but not be limited to, soil boring logs and soils classifications water 
table elevations.  

(f) Drainage easements shall be provided to assure the perpetuity of detention areas when constructed as 
permanent drainage facilities.  

(g) Maintenance of drainage easements, detention areas and other structures shall be determined as a part of 
the subdivision agreement.  

(h) The developer shall make all practical efforts to assure that the water quality of post-development runoff is 
not less than the predevelopment runoff.  

17

5.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:24 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 5 of 6 

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

Sec. 17-4-80. Erosion control and site grading. 

(a) All new development shall ensure that erosion and sedimentation caused during construction and in the 
post-construction stage is prevented from causing any off-site effects in excess of what occurred in the 
predevelopment condition. The universal soil loss equation shall be used to calculate the amount of erosion 
to be generated by construction, and an interim stabilization and final stabilization plan shall be provided by 
the developer to ensure the containment of wind and water erosion effects on site during and after 
construction.  

(b) On slopes greater than ten percent (10%), slope stabilization and revegetation will be required. Plans shall 
include a description of existing vegetation to be planted and other slope-stabilization measures to be 
installed. New vegetation should be selected and located to be compatible with the surrounding vegetation, 
soil and ecological characteristics of the area.  

(c) Slopes shall be finished to match or blend with the natural contours of the adjacent terrain by eliminating 
sharp grade transitions of cut-and-fill slopes.  

(d) All existing trees that are to be retained and are over three (3) inches in diameter measured three (3) feet 
above grade shall be protected during construction and grading operations by placing fencing outside of the 
drip line of the tree.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

Sec. 17-4-90. Bridges. 

Any bridge planned as part of a proposed subdivision shall be designed and constructed and paid for by the 
subdivider in accordance with American Association of State Highway Officials recommendations, which 
recommendations are incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth verbatim. Where an existing bridge is a 
part of a proposed subdivision and does not meet specifications of this Chapter, it is the responsibility of the 
subdivider to repair or replace such bridge as necessary to meet the requirements of H20 live load prior to 
acceptance by the Board of Trustees for maintenance. No lot served by such bridge shall be built upon or occupied 
until such improvements have been completed. The width of such bridge shall not be less than the width of the 
roadways approaching it on either side.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

Sec. 17-4-100. Water systems. 

Water distribution systems shall be designed to connect with the Town water system and make water 
available to each lot and proposed site of use in the proposed subdivision. Fire hydrants shall be located to ensure 
protection of each lot based on utilization of existing Town firefighting equipment. Design and engineering of the 
system shall be the responsibility of the subdivider, with all plans subject to approval of the Town. Installation of 
the system shall be to Town specifications. Financial responsibility for the water distribution system shall belong to 
the subdivider and shall be subject to existing Town regulations and agreements executed by the Town and the 
subdivider.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

18

5.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:24 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 6 of 6 

Sec. 17-4-110. Sanitary sewer systems. 

The sanitary sewer system for the subdivision shall be designed to connect with the Town's system and shall 
provide service for each lot and proposed building site within the subdivision. Design and installation of the system 
shall be subject to the approval of the Town and in accordance with the specifications of the Town. The developer 
shall pay for the sanitary sewage collection system subject to all regulations of the Town, State and federal 
government.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

 

19

5.



Administrator Review Attachment B 

 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Sec. 16-3-20. Schedule of uses, residential districts. 

Table 16-1 
Schedule of Uses - Residential Districts 
 

Use  R-1 District  R-2 District  R-3 District  E-1 District  MH District  

Single-family dwellings  P  P  P  P  P  

Two-family dwellings  X  P  P  S  X  

Multiple-family 
dwellings, 
apartments/townhouses 
not exceeding 6 units 
per lot  

X  S  P  X  X  

Multiple-family 
dwellings, 
apartments/townhouses 
in excess of 6 units per 
lot  

X  X  S  X  X  

Mobile home parks  X  X  X  X  S 1  

Mobile home 
subdivisions  

X  X  X  X  P  

Parks and recreation 
areas  

P  P  P  P  P  

Private schools  S  S  S  S  X  

Public or governmental 
uses  

S  S  S  S  X  

Group homes for the 
developmentally 
disabled  

S  S  S  S  S  

Churches  S  S  S  S  S  

Nursing homes/assisted 
living apartments  

X  S  S  X  X  

Rooming houses/bed 
and breakfasts  

X  S  S  S  X  

Professional offices 2  X  S  S  X  S  

Neighborhood 
convenience centers 3  

S  S  S  S  S  

Antenna structures 
(towers)  

S  S  S  S  S  

Horses, barns and 
pastures  

X  X  X  P  X  

Mobile homes (single 
unit)  

X  X  X  X  P  

Neighborhood 
commercial uses 4  

X  X  X  X  P  

P = Permit by right  

20

5.



Administrator Review Attachment B 

 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

S = Permit by special review  

X = Prohibited use  

1 See Article 8 of this Chapter.  

2 Professional offices as home occupations are permitted in all districts, subject to provisions in Section 16-11-20 of this Chapter.  

3 Neighborhood commercial uses may include small food stores, specialty shops, gift, antique shops or similar type uses. 
Maximum floor area shall be 2,000 square feet total.  

4 Neighborhood convenience center shall have a maximum total floor area of 10,000 square feet and no single business with a 
greater total floor area than 2,000 square feet.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. X, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

 

21

5.



Administrator Review Attachment C 

 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Sec. 16-3-30. Schedule of requirements, residential districts. 

Table 16-2 
Schedule of Requirements1- Residential Districts 
 

 R-1 District  R-2 District  R-3 District  E-1 District  MH District  

Minimum  
Lot Area  

Requirement
s  

Dwellin
g  
units  

Min. 
lot  

area  
(sq. 
ft.)  

Dwellin
g  
units  

Min. 
lot  

area  
(sq. 
ft.)  

Dwellin
g  
units 
per  
story  

Min. 
lot  

area  
(sq. 
ft.)  

Dwellin
g  
units  

Min. 
lot  

area  
(sq. 
ft.)  

Dwellin
g  
units  

Min. 
lot  

area  
(sq. 
ft.)  

Residential 
uses 
permitted by 
right  

1  6,00
0  

1  6,000  1  6,000  1  3 
acre
s  

1  5,00
0  

   2  8,000  2  6,000  2   N/A  N/A  

     3  8,000      

     4  10,00
0  

    

     5  12,50
0  

    

     6  15,00
0  

    

Residential 
uses 
permitted by 
special 
review  

  3  12,00
0  

Over 6 
units  

15,00
0 sq. 
ft.  

    

   4  16,00
0  

 +      

   5  20,00
0  

 2,500 
sq. ft.  

    

   6  24,00
0  

 for 
each 
unit 
over 6  

    

Yard Requirements2  R-1 District  R-2 District  R-3 District  E-1 District  MH District  

All yard areas adjacent 
to an arterial street 
major and minor  

50 ft.  35 ft.  35 ft.  75 ft.  50 ft.  

Front yard setback  

 Collector  
 (major and minor)  

25 ft.  25 ft.  25 ft.  50 ft.  25 ft.  

 Local  20 ft.  20 ft.  20 ft.  35 ft.  20 ft.  

Side yard  6 ft.  6 ft.  10 ft.3  20 ft.  6 ft.  

Rear yard  10 ft.  10 ft.  20 ft.  20 ft.  15 ft.  

22

5.



Administrator Review Attachment C 

 

 

 
    Created: 2021-03-30 18:46:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

Minimum lot width  50 ft.  50 ft.  50 ft.  200 ft.  50 ft.  

Minimum landscaped 
open space (% of lot 
area)  

-  20%  20%  30%  -  

Minimum lot coverage  30%  30%  30%  20%  50%  

Maximum building 
height  

25 ft.  25 ft.  35 ft.  30 ft.  25 ft.  

1 See also the following provisions: 16-3-40 to 16-3-60 pertaining to average lot areas, side yard setback variation and front yard 
variation.  

2 See supplementary requirements in Section 16-10-60.  

3 When a building is 3 stories, a 15-foot setback is required.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. X, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

 

23

5.



Item #

Estimated

Quantity Unit
Description

Unit Price Total Price

1 3097 LF Concrete Curb and Gutter 35.00 108,395.00

2 2 EA Drain Inlet 5,000.00 10,000.00

3 50 LF 12" ADS Drain Pipe 50.00 2,500.00

Total 120,895.00

Project No. 2013-471.009

Riverbank Subdivision

Total of All Items

Administrator Review Attachment D

24

5.



 

 

 P.O. Box 3310, 130 N. Park Avenue       Montrose, Colorado 81402               T: 970-249-7000               F: 970-249-8440 

 

DEVOR & PLUMHOFF, LLC                                                                         Bo James Nerlin   
Attorneys and Counselors at Law                        bo@coloradowestlaw.com 

         

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
To: Planning Commission - Town of Paonia 
From:  Bo James Nerlin, Esq.  
Re:  Subdivision - Riverbank Neighborhood 
Date:  April 15, 2021 
CC: Ms. Corinne Ferguson  
 
 

On behalf of the Town of Paonia, I have been tasked with reviewing the Application for 
Subdivision for the Riverbank Neighborhood (the “Application”), submitted by Old World, LLC 
(the “Applicant”), to confirm that the application is substantially complete.  In undertaking this 
review, I have examined the following:  

 
1. Geotechnical – soils report;  
2. Sketch Plan;  
3. List of Property owners within 200’; 
4. Application; 
5. Covenants for the Riverbank Neighborhood;  
6. Referral letters from the utility companies;  
7. Engineering work from the developer, Odisea;  
8. Preliminary Engineering Plan;  
9. Preliminary Plat;  
10. Proposed Subdivision Improvements Agreement;  
11. Title Commitment and updated title commitment; 
12. Storm-water drainage report;  
13. Engineers Cost Estimate;  
14. Traffic Impact Analysis 
15. Proof of ownership 

 
With the information submitted by the Applicant, I am of the opinion that the Application 

is substantially complete in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Town Code.  In considering the 
Application, the Planning Commission may recommend approval of the Application to the Board 
of Trustees; they can recommend approval with modifications to the Application, or they can 
recommend denial of the Application.  Thereafter, the Board of Trustees shall consider the 
Application, and the Board may: approve the Application, approve the Application with 
modifications, or deny the Application.   

 
Based upon my review of the Application, there are several exceptions from the Town 

Code that the Applicant has sought, particularly the design standards under Section 17-4-10 et. 
seq. Such request is allowed under the Town Code, and the Planning Commission may 
recommend granting an exception in accordance with Section 17-1-50(b).  

25

5.



Three items in the Application will need to be addressed prior to the Applicant receiving 
a final plat, and/or the issuance of building permits.  First, the existing Covenants for the 
Riverbank Neighborhood pre-date this Application and were recorded against the Property when 
the Applicant was examining an alternative for developing the Property.  If approved, the 
Covenants will need to be amended to conform to the approved plat and any and all conditions 
that the development may be subject to.  Second, the proposed Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement will need to be updated to address any conditions placed on the Application, included 
with this is a cost estimate for the security for the Development Cost Estimate as defined in the 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement.  Lastly, the Applicant currently owns two municipal water 
and sewer taps.  The Applicant has been advised that there is an existing moratorium on the sale 
of water taps, and a limit on the sale of future water sales.  In the event the Application is 
approved, any new lots will be subject to the existing moratorium.   

 
  

26

5.



R i v e r b a n k       N e i g h b o r h o o d

                                                                       Y O U R  S P O T  I N  T H E  S U N

Town of  Paonia

Planning & Zoning Commiss ion

Grand  Avenue,  Paonia ,  CO

March 9 t h ,  2021

Members  of  the  P lanning & Zoning Commiss ion :

We proudly  submi t  the  Riverbank  proposal  for  a  low dens i ty  res ident ia l  

ne ighborhood.  This  proposal  i s  cons is tent  wi th  our  work-sess ion  of  June  

4 t h ,  2020.

main points

The main  poin ts  are

»  15  res ident ia l  lo ts ,  zoned R2,  each  roughly 1  acre ,

»  1  open space  lo t ,  approximate ly  2  acre ,

»  an  "evergreen  buffer"  be tween  neighbors  and  Riverbank,

»  a  newly  cons t ructed  At lant ic  Avenue,

»  i r r iga t ion  water  f rom Feldman  and Farmers  d i tches ,

»  easements  for  t ra i l s .

page 1 of 5

27

6.



benefits

The  Riverbank  of fers  impor tan t  benef i t s  to  i t s  prospect ive  home-owners  

and  the  larger  town.  

The  Riverbank  s lopes  to  the  South ,  ideal  for  so lar  homes .  Views  of  

Lamborn  and Landsend  are  a lso  South .  And,  . . .  a r iver  runs  through i t .  

The  proximi ty  to  down- town a l lows  for  walking  or  b ik ing  as  an  a l ternat ive  

to  the  car .  The Riverbank  wi l l  add v i ta l i ty  to  Grand Avenue and  enhance  

tax- income for  the  town.  The Riverbank  eas i ly  t ies  in to  in- town water  and 

sewer ,  whi le  possess ing  ample  i r r iga t ion  water  for  outdoor  use .  

F inal ly,  the  Riverbank  extends  the  t ra i l  sys tem around  the  Nor th  Fork .

variances

For  the  Riverbank  Neighborhood appl ica t ion ,  we reques t  the  fo l lowing  

var iances :

»  reduced  ROW width  (17-4-50) , ,

»  change  in  typica l  road  sec t ion  (17-4-50,  17-4-40 ( l )  & 17-4-40 (g) ) .

The pre l iminary  approval  of  2010 granted  a  var iance  for  reduced  road-

width .  One reason is  tha t  reduced  road-width  resul ts  in  s lower  t raf f ic ,  and 

benef i t s  publ ic  safe ty.  

The Riverbank  Neighborhood has  a  reduced dens i ty  of  15  lo ts .  Previous  

proposals  were  for  some 50 lo ts ;  inc luding  the  above pre l iminary  approval .

page 2 of 5

28

6.



The dens i ty  has  been reduced  to  make  the  appl ica t ion  more  pala table  to  the

town.  Consequent ly,  the  revenue  f rom lo t  sa les  has  been  subs tant ia l ly  

reduced.  Our  inves tments  in  inf ras t ructure  must  s imi lar ly  be  reduced,  in  

order  to  keep  lo ts  af fordable .  S t r ic t  appl ica t ion  of  the  des ign  s tandards  

would  therefore  resul t  in  unnecessary  hardship .

The Riverbank  proper ty  i s  in tended  have  a  more  rura l  charac ter  than  

Paonia ' s  down- town.  At lant ic  Avenue  wi l l  be  a  dead-end s t ree t ,  serv ic ing  a

mere  f i f teen  lo ts .  I t  ex tends  f rom Pr ice  Road,  a  county  road wi thout  curbs ,  

gut ters  or  s idewalks .  As  Pr ice  Road  s i t s  in  an  easement  ( ra ther  than  a  

r ight -of -way)  i t  i s  hard  to  see  how curbs ,  gut ters  and/or  s idewalks  could  be

added.

The Riverbank  won' t  t ie  in to  the  Town s tormwater  sys tem,  so  the  gut ters  

are  not  needed to  d i rec t  water  in to  s torm sewer  in le ts .  For  most  of  the  

length  of  the  road,  adjacent  grades  do  not  dra in  toward  the  s t ree t ,  so  we 

would  only  be  captur ing  runoff  f rom the  pavement  and areas  immedia te ly  

adjacent  to  i t .  

There  i s  noth ing wrong wi th  a  road wi thout  curbs  and  gut ters .  C-DOT 

cons t ruct  h ighways  in  th is  manner .  The  same goes  for  county  roads .  I t  

appears  tha t  only in  a  medium to  h igh-dens i ty  environment ,  do  the  benef i t s

of  curbs  & gut ters  outweigh i t s  cos ts .  Down-town Paonia  i s  such a  

medium-dens i ty  environment ;  wi th  four  to  s ix  lo ts  per  acre .  The  Riverbank  

dens i ty  i s  less  than  one  lo t  per  acre .

Therefore ,  curbs  & gut ters  and fu l l  road-width  are  unnecessary  and even  

adverse  to  the  in tended  character  of  the  Riverbank  Neighborhood.  

page 3 of 5

29

6.



plan B

In  case  the  town does  not  grant  a  var iance  for  curb  & gut ter ,  we propose  a  

p lan  B:

• to  add one  res ident ia l  lo t ,

• cons t ruct ion  of  curbs  & gut ters  be  defer red  unt i l  50% of  the  lo ts  are  

so ld .

page 4 of 5

30

6.



The ext ra  lo t  could  be  a  mere  9916 f t ² ,  s i tua ted  wi th in  the  1 .87  acre  open  

space .

The town 's  engineer  has  es t imated  tha t  jus t  curbs  & gut ters  would  cos t  

$125,000.  Exper ience  demonstra tes  tha t  the  ac tual  cos ts  a lways  exceed  the  

es t imate .  With  an  ext ra  res ident ia l - lo t  and defer red  cons t ruct ion ,  the  

developer  i s  par t ly  compensated  for  these  expenses .  

Yours  S incere ly,

Old  World  LLC,

Ivo Renkema

page 5 of 5

31

6.



R i v e r b a n k       N e i g h b o r h o o d

                                                                       Y O U R  S P O T  I N  T H E  S U N

Town of  Paonia

Planning & Zoning Commiss ion

Grand  Avenue,  Paonia ,  CO

March 9 t h ,  2021

Members  of  the  P lanning & Zoning Commiss ion :

We proudly  submi t  the  Riverbank  proposal  for  a  low dens i ty  res ident ia l  

ne ighborhood.  This  proposal  i s  cons is tent  wi th  our  work-sess ion  of  June  

4 t h ,  2020.

main points

The main  poin ts  are

»  15  res ident ia l  lo ts ,  zoned R2,  each  roughly 1  acre ,

»  1  open space  lo t ,  approximate ly  2  acre ,

»  an  "evergreen  buffer"  be tween  neighbors  and  Riverbank,

»  a  newly  cons t ructed  At lant ic  Avenue,

»  i r r iga t ion  water  f rom Feldman  and Farmers  d i tches ,

»  easements  for  t ra i l s .

page 1 of 5

32

7.



Summary of Comments on Town of Paonia
This page contains no comments

33

7.



benefits

The  Riverbank  of fers  impor tan t  benef i t s  to  i t s  prospect ive  home-owners  

and  the  larger  town.  

The  Riverbank  s lopes  to  the  South ,  ideal  for  so lar  homes .  Views  of  

Lamborn  and Landsend  are  a lso  South .  And,  . . .  a r iver  runs  through i t .  

The  proximi ty  to  down- town a l lows  for  walking  or  b ik ing  as  an  a l ternat ive  

to  the  car .  The Riverbank  wi l l  add v i ta l i ty  to  Grand Avenue and  enhance  

tax- income for  the  town.  The Riverbank  eas i ly  t ies  in to  in- town water  and 

sewer ,  whi le  possess ing  ample  i r r iga t ion  water  for  outdoor  use .  

F inal ly,  the  Riverbank  extends  the  t ra i l  sys tem around  the  Nor th  Fork .

variances

For  the  Riverbank  Neighborhood appl ica t ion ,  we reques t  the  fo l lowing  

var iances :

»  reduced  ROW width  (17-4-50) , ,

»  change  in  typica l  road  sec t ion  (17-4-50,  17-4-40 ( l )  & 17-4-40 (g) ) .

The pre l iminary  approval  of  2010 granted  a  var iance  for  reduced  road-

width .  One reason is  tha t  reduced  road-width  resul ts  in  s lower  t raf f ic ,  and 

benef i t s  publ ic  safe ty.  

The Riverbank  Neighborhood has  a  reduced dens i ty  of  15  lo ts .  Previous  

proposals  were  for  some 50 lo ts ;  inc luding  the  above pre l iminary  approval .

page 2 of 5

1

34

7.



Page: 2
Number: 1 Author: TownClerk Subject: Sticky Note Date: 3/22/2021 1:53:21 PM 
The original application and any preliminary approvals were formally withdrawn by Old World LLC in 2014.  This no longer applies.
 

35

7.



The dens i ty  has  been reduced  to  make  the  appl ica t ion  more  pala table  to  the

town.  Consequent ly,  the  revenue  f rom lo t  sa les  has  been  subs tant ia l ly  

reduced.  Our  inves tments  in  inf ras t ructure  must  s imi lar ly  be  reduced,  in  

order  to  keep  lo ts  af fordable .  S t r ic t  appl ica t ion  of  the  des ign  s tandards  

would  therefore  resul t  in  unnecessary  hardship .

The Riverbank  proper ty  i s  in tended  have  a  more  rura l  charac ter  than  

Paonia ' s  down- town.  At lant ic  Avenue  wi l l  be  a  dead-end s t ree t ,  serv ic ing  a

mere  f i f teen  lo ts .  I t  ex tends  f rom Pr ice  Road,  a  county  road wi thout  curbs ,  

gut ters  or  s idewalks .  As  Pr ice  Road  s i t s  in  an  easement  ( ra ther  than  a  

r ight -of -way)  i t  i s  hard  to  see  how curbs ,  gut ters  and/or  s idewalks  could  be

added.

The Riverbank  won' t  t ie  in to  the  Town s tormwater  sys tem,  so  the  gut ters  

are  not  needed to  d i rec t  water  in to  s torm sewer  in le ts .  For  most  of  the  

length  of  the  road,  adjacent  grades  do  not  dra in  toward  the  s t ree t ,  so  we 

would  only  be  captur ing  runoff  f rom the  pavement  and areas  immedia te ly  

adjacent  to  i t .  

There  i s  noth ing wrong wi th  a  road wi thout  curbs  and  gut ters .  C-DOT 

cons t ruct  h ighways  in  th is  manner .  The  same goes  for  county  roads .  I t  

appears  tha t  only in  a  medium to  h igh-dens i ty  environment ,  do  the  benef i t s

of  curbs  & gut ters  outweigh i t s  cos ts .  Down-town Paonia  i s  such a  

medium-dens i ty  environment ;  wi th  four  to  s ix  lo ts  per  acre .  The  Riverbank  

dens i ty  i s  less  than  one  lo t  per  acre .

Therefore ,  curbs  & gut ters  and fu l l  road-width  are  unnecessary  and even  

adverse  to  the  in tended  character  of  the  Riverbank  Neighborhood.  

page 3 of 5

1

2

3

36

7.



 
Page: 3

Number: 1 Author: TownClerk Subject: Sticky Note Date: 3/22/2021 1:36:08 PM 
As confirmed by independent engineering review, prescriptive easements for roads must still adhere to all applicable road regulations.  
Should the Town annex Price Road, Town regulations for sidewalks, curb, and gutter would still apply, and feasibility would need to be 
evaluated.
 
Number: 2 Author: TownClerk Subject: Sticky Note Date: 3/22/2021 1:40:13 PM 
There are several reasons other than the municipal code requirement for sidewalk curb and gutter.  Curbs and gutters serve a multitude of
functions, including collecting water from crowned pavements and conveying to points of collection, reducing the amount of water that 
seeps under pavement causing road issues and instability, protects against erosion of the roadside shoulders, outlines the edges of 
pavement, provides defined boarders between traveled and untraveled surfaces and are known to effectively slow speed traffic within the 
edges of pavements.
 
Number: 3 Author: TownClerk Subject: Sticky Note Date: 3/22/2021 1:43:37 PM 
Riverbank is zoned R-2 which is medium density.  While the current arrangement is approximately 1 to 1.5 acre lots, the Town has to 
prepare beyond the initial developers plan and include in decision-making the necessary requirements and improvements for the future 
development of the properties, which could include multiple single family homes and duplexes by right.
 

37

7.



plan B

In  case  the  town does  not  grant  a  var iance  for  curb  & gut ter ,  we propose  a  

p lan  B:

• to  add one  res ident ia l  lo t ,

• cons t ruct ion  of  curbs  & gut ters  be  defer red  unt i l  50% of  the  lo ts  are  

so ld .

page 4 of 5

38

7.



This page contains no comments

39

7.



The ext ra  lo t  could  be  a  mere  9916 f t ² ,  s i tua ted  wi th in  the  1 .87  acre  open  

space .

The town 's  engineer  has  es t imated  tha t  jus t  curbs  & gut ters  would  cos t  

$125,000.  Exper ience  demonstra tes  tha t  the  ac tual  cos ts  a lways  exceed  the  

es t imate .  With  an  ext ra  res ident ia l - lo t  and defer red  cons t ruct ion ,  the  

developer  i s  par t ly  compensated  for  these  expenses .  

Yours  S incere ly,

Old  World  LLC,

Ivo Renkema

page 5 of 5

40

7.



This page contains no comments

41

7.



 

 

 P.O. Box 3310, 130 N. Park Avenue       Montrose, Colorado 81402               T: 970-249-7000               F: 970-249-8440 

 

DEVOR & PLUMHOFF, LLC                                                         Bo James Nerlin, Esq. 
Attorneys and Counselors at Law                        bo@coloradowestlaw.com 

 

         

 

 
 

November 25, 2020 
via email only 
 
Mr. Ivo Renkema 
Old World, LLC  
 
 Re:  Riverbank Neighborhood Subdivision – Town of Paonia 
  Subdivision Application  
 
Dear Mr. Renkema,  
 
 On behalf of staff of the Town of Paonia, a review of your Application for Subdivision -
Final Plan for the Riverbank Neighborhood Subdivision has been completed.  At this time, it is 
the conclusion of staff that all of the required materials for the application process have been 
appropriately submitted.   This is based on the provision of the following materials:  
  

1. Geotechnical – soils report  
2. Sketch Plan 
3. List of property owners within 200’  
4. Application 
5. Covenants for the Riverbank Neighborhood  
6. Referral letters from utility companies 
7. Engineering work from Odisea 
8. Preliminary Plan  
9. Subdivision Improvements Agreement  
10. Title Commitment and updated title commitment  
11. Storm-water drainage report 
12. Engineers Cost Estimate 
13. Traffic Impact Analysis  
14. Proof of Ownership 

 
In completing this review, the Town contracted with SGM Civil Engineering of 

Glenwood Springs Colorado to undertake a substantive review of the engineering work 
completed by Odiesa.  On November 16, 2020 SGM provided both staff and your team a 
preliminary review of the Riverbank Subdivision engineering.  Since the 16th, the Town has had 
an opportunity to evaluate this review and confer with SGM.  Based on this review and conferral, 

42

8.

mailto:bo@coloradowestlaw.com


Mr. Ivo Renkema 

enclosed with this letter is revised Engineering Review dated November 24, 2020 which 
incorporates comments from Town staff.   

 
While some of the comments included in the updated Engineering Review are relatively 

minor and simply require clean up or clarification, there are a number of substantive comments 
that we suggest you and your team further address.  Beginning on Page 4 of the report, please 
have Odiesa take a substantive review of comments 26 through 39.  Coupled with this, please 
address the dead-end of Atlantic Ave. (comment 41).  While it is recognized that the Atlantic 
Ave dead-end will be a request for a variance from the Town, please provide greater detail as to 
the need for this variance.  In requesting this variance, address the emergency turnarounds and 
provide assurance from the appropriate responding agencies that these turnarounds are 
acceptable (comments 43 – 45).   

 
In addition to the November 24, 2020 Engineering Review by SGM, staff is in the 

process of completing its staff report to the planning commission.   In preparing this staff report, 
we would like to provide you the opportunity to address the issues raised in the November 24 
SGM Engineering Review. With the revised SGM Engineering Review and the comments 
highlighted herein, we look forward to our virtual meeting on November 30th at 12:00 pm 
Mountain hopefully addressing the concerns provided.  
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
    Bo James Nerlin 
 
Cc: Ms. J. Corinne Ferguson  
 Mr. Travis Loberg 
 Mr. Brandyn Bair, PE 

43

8.



I:\2013\2013-471  Town of Paonia\009-RiverbankSub\A-Corresp\L 20201124 UPDATEDRiverbankSubdivisionEngReview.doc 

 
 
 
 
November 16, 2020  (UPDATED 11/24/2020) 
 
 
Corinne Ferguson 
Town Manager 
Town of Paonia 
214 Grand Avenue 
Paonia, CO 81428 
 
 
RE:   Engineering Review Comments 
 Riverbank Neighborhood Subdivision 
 
 
Dear Corinne, 
 
At your request, SGM has completed a review of the aforementioned project.  In order to conduct this 
review, we downloaded the materials from the website which included the following: 
 

A. Geotechnical Report 
B. Sketch Plan 
C. Property Owners with 200’ 
D. Application Form 
E. Covenants 
F. Referral Letters 
G. Engineering Drawings by Odisea.  The drawing set comprised of a total of 14 sheets dated August 

14, 2020 as prepared by Odisea, LLC.  The following sheets were included in the set: 
 

a. C0.0 - Title Sheet 
b. C0.1 - Civil Notes 
c. C0.2 - Civil Notes 
d. C1.0 - Existing Site Plan 
e. C2.0 - Proposed Site Plan 
f. C3.0 - Grading & Drainage 
g. C4.0 - Atlantic Avenue Plan & Profile 
h. C5.0 - Sanitary Sewer Plan & Profile 
i. C6.0 - Water Distribution Plan 
j. C7.0 - Utility Plan 
k. C8.0 - Civil Details 
l. C8.1 - Civil Details 
m. C8.2 - Civil Details 
n. C8.3 - Civil Details 

 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

GLENWOOD SPRINGS 118 West Sixth St, Suite 200 | Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 | 970.945.100444

9.



I:\2013\2013-471  Town of Paonia\009-RiverbankSub\A-Corresp\L 20201124 UPDATEDRiverbankSubdivisionEngReview.doc 

H. Preliminary Plan 
I. Subdivision Improvements Agreement 
J. Title Commitment 
K. Final Plat 
L. Storm Water Drainage Report by Odisea 
M. Engineer’s Cost Estimate by Odisea 
N. Traffic Impact Analysis 
O. Proof of Ownership 

 
Please note SGM focused its review on the engineering drawings, as the other documents met the intent 
of the subdivision submittal requirements.  Please note the following comments and concerns, which are 
in no particular order. 
 

1. On sheet C0.1, note 21 states 4 foot of cover over waterlines.  Town of Paonia’s minimum cover 
over waterlines is 5 feet. 
 

2. On sheet C0.1, note 24 should include requirements regarding the SUE (Subsurface Utility 
Engineering) requirements for Colorado per Senate Bill 18-167.  This project involves excavation 
over 2 foot deep and more than 1,000 contiguous square feet.  Quality levels (A-D) need to be 
accurately described. 

 
3. On sheet C0.1, text size for the Erosion Control Notes appear to be smaller for the rest of the 

notes. 
 

4. On sheet C0.1, note #2 under Water System Notes need to be changed to reflect 5 feet of cover 
over the top of the waterline. 
 

5. On sheet C0.1, notes 1.3 and 3.2 under Water System Appurtenances are very similar, consider 
deleting note 1.3. 
 

6. On sheet C0.1, delete section 5 under Water System Appurtenances referencing butterfly valves.  
SGM didn’t find any references/use of butterfly valves in the project documents. 
 

7. On sheet C0.1, section 6 under Water System Appurtenances could be deleted, as they’re not 
relevant to the project. 
 

8. On sheet C0.1, section 7 under Water System Appurtenances could be deleted, as they’re not 
relevant to the project. 
 

9. On sheet C0.1, note 8.1 under Water System Appurtenances, need to be revised to include the 
right entity, Town of Paonia, not ACWWA, and the appropriate standard drawing references. 
 

10. On sheet C0.1, section 9 under Water System Appurtenances, need to be revised to include the 
right entity, Town of Paonia, not ACWWA, and the appropriate standard drawing references. 
 

11. On sheet C0.1, note 10.1 under Water System Appurtenances, need to be revised to include the 
right entity, Town of Paonia, not ACWWA, and the appropriate standard drawing references. 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

45

9.



I:\2013\2013-471  Town of Paonia\009-RiverbankSub\A-Corresp\L 20201124 UPDATEDRiverbankSubdivisionEngReview.doc 

12. On sheet C0.1, note 11.1.2, shall be changed to read “compressive strength of 3,000 psi”.  This 
change will match what is called out in the details. 
 

13. On sheet C0.1, HDPE (High Density Polyethylene) Pipe and Fittings section.  Town of Paonia 
code requires C900 PVC for waterlines and SDR 35 PVC for gravity sewer lines.  The Town will 
allow HDPE for the waterline, however the HDPE must be DIPS sizing to allow the use of ductile 
iron pipe fittings for future maintenance/repair. 
 

14. On sheet C0.1, notes 2A.02.D and 2B.02.D, references electrofusion saddle/services taps.  
Electrofusion saddle/service tap will not be accepted. Town of Paonia requires the use of 
traditional double strap tapping saddles as specified in the current Town of Paonia specifications 
within the Municipal Code. 
 

15. On sheet C0.1, notes 2A.03.C and 2B.03.C.  Details provided in the drawings make no reference 
to tracer wire.  Tracer wire is required on all new pipes per SUE regulations.  Town requires tracer 
wire to be No. 12 gauge solid copper. 
 

16. On sheet C0.2, consider deleting note 3 under the Sanitary Sewer Material Specification for Pipe 
and Fittings as the proposed sewer line is only 8-inch diameter. 
 

17. On sheet C0.2, consider deleting note 4 under the Sanitary Sewer Material Specification for Pipe 
and Fittings as there are not pressure sewer lines proposed for the project. 
 

18. On sheet C0.2, note 2 under Sanitary Sewer Installation Specifications, references to subsections 
9-3-5 and 9-3-6 need to be updated and/or deleted. 
 

19. On sheet C0.2, note 4 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration Specifications, 
reference to subsection 9-4-3 needs to be updated and/or deleted. 
 

20. On sheet C0.2, note 13 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration Specifications, 
reference to subsection 9-6 needs to be updated and/or deleted. 
 

21. On sheet C0.2, note 15.1 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration Specifications, 
reference to subsection 9-5-10 needs to be updated and/or deleted. 
 

22. On sheet C0.2, suggest changing note 15.3.1 to every 100 linear feet of trench instead of every 
400 linear feet.  This will ensure the entire trench section will get tested versus large sections of 
the trench going untested using the 400 foot interval. 
 

23. On sheet C0.2, delete note 15.3.2.  Quality assurance testing is in the Town best interests.  If 
testing is not complete the Town could accept a substandard product. 
 

24. On sheet C0.2, note 15.3.3 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration 
Specifications, reference to subsection 9-3-7 needs to be updated and/or deleted. 
 

25. On sheet C0.2, note 16 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration Specifications, 
reference to subsection 9-2-5 needs to be updated and/or deleted. 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

46

9.



I:\2013\2013-471  Town of Paonia\009-RiverbankSub\A-Corresp\L 20201124 UPDATEDRiverbankSubdivisionEngReview.doc 

 
26. On sheet C0.2, note 4 under Final Inspection and Acceptance, change reference of Montrose 

Submittal Standards to Town of Paonia. 
 

27. General comment regarding notes and specific materials/manufacturers.  Plans need to 
reflect/match the Town approved specifications.  Refer to Appendix D, Standard Construction 
Specifications. 
 

28. On sheet C2.0, lots 1 and 4 within the 100 flood zone designation AE.  Notes should be provided 
on the plans as necessary documenting the construction needs to be 1 foot above base flood 
elevations. 
 

29. On sheet C2.0, 10’ drainage easement on the western edge of Lot 1 appears small in width for 
future maintenance.  Unclear in the plans if there is a drainage ditch within this easement.  Also 
unclear if the easement should include maintenance/access descriptions.  Same situation applies 
between lots 5/6 and 13/15. 
 

30. On sheet C2.0, 10’ utility easement doesn’t seem large enough in width for future maintenance of 
waterline. 
 

31. On sheet C3.0, plan and profiles should be provided for all culverts. 
 

32. Riprap recommended and inlet/outlet of all culverts to help with erosion/sediment control.  Details 
shall be provided 
 

33. On sheet C3.0, depth of road side ditches are undefined.  It appears ditch could have negative 
impact on shallow utilities and current waterline location.  Ditch appears to be approximately 5 foot 
deep, but hard to tell with no finished contour labels or profiles of culverts. 
 

34. No construction details are provided for the detention basins. 
 

35. Do drainage easements around detention basins need to also be access easements for future 
maintenance? 
 

36. It appears from the current design all driveways will require culverts.  These culverts would all be 
within the Town’s right of way.  Covenants need to reflect that the homeowner is responsible for 
installing and maintaining driveway culverts.   
 

37. Who is maintaining ditches throughout the subdivision?  Covenants need to reflect the 
subdivision/HOA is responsible for maintaining the ditches within the subdividion. 
 

38. On sheet C4.0, what happens to the drainage at low point of road at station 2+72.45?  Currently, 
drainage will sheet flow off the road at this location with consideration to erosion control. 
 

39. No details provided for connecting Atlantic Avenue to Price Road.  SGM assumes that sawcutting 
of at least 1 foot into Price Road for connection.  Drawings should include spot elevations, 
stationing, curve data, etc. 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

47

9.



I:\2013\2013-471  Town of Paonia\009-RiverbankSub\A-Corresp\L 20201124 UPDATEDRiverbankSubdivisionEngReview.doc 

 
40. SGM recommends curbs, gutter, and sidewalks per Municipal Code section 17-4-40 (l). 

 
41. It appears Atlantic Avenue is a dead end street.  Municipal Code Section 17-4-40 (g) requires no 

more than 500 feet from connecting street (Price Road). 
 

42. SGM recommends cul-de-sac at the end of Atlantic Avenue versus emergency turnaround per 
Municipal Code Section 17-4-40 (g). 
 

43. If emergency turnarounds are utilized, Developer shall provide information from Fire Department 
and other emergency services that emergency turnaround are of acceptable size. 
 

44. No details for provided for construction of emergency turnarounds. 
 

45. Appears potential driveway for Lot 16 would be obstructed by emergency turnaround. 
 

46. Road grade shown on profile between station 14+10.11 and station 15+41.52 is 0.39%. Minimum 
per Municipal Code section 17-4-40 (h) is 0.5%. 
 

47. On all sheets, but noted here on sheet C2.0, existing waterline and existing manhole at station 
2+31 appear to be in conflict.  Developer should verify location of existing utilities prior to tying in 
new infrastructure. 
 

48. On sheet C5.0, it is recommended that sanitary sewer should be installed on one side of Atlantic 
Avenue and potable water should be installed on the other side with a minimum of 10 foot 
horizontal separation.  This recommendation will result in additional manholes to navigate the 
curves in the road. 
 

49. Water service note in profile of sanitary sewer at station 2+50 is misleading about 5 foot minimum 
cover as the current details in proposed plan show 4 foot of cover over proposed waterline. 
 

50. Details need to be provided for connecting to existing manhole at station 2+30. 
 

51. Discrepancy between general sewer notes on sheet C0.2 and pipe callouts in profile on sheet 
C5.0.  Sheet C0.2 calls out pipe to conform to ASTM 3034, SDR35.  Sheet C5.0 calls out SDR 26 
HDPE.  Town code requires sanitary sewer pipe be 8-inch SDR 35. 
 

52. On sheet C6.0, waterline needs be installed with the pavement section of Atlantic Avenue.  
Waterline should not be installed outside of the pavement and underneath underground telephone 
and fiber optic lines.   
 

53. SGM recommends provided a profile of the waterline to be able to identify any potential piping 
conflicts with other utilities. 
 

54. Details need to be provided for connecting to existing waterline near station 0+00 of waterline.  
Why is the waterline stationing different than the road/sanitary sewer stationing? 
 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

48

9.



I:\2013\2013-471  Town of Paonia\009-RiverbankSub\A-Corresp\L 20201124 UPDATEDRiverbankSubdivisionEngReview.doc 

55. Town of Paonia prefers installing additional hydrant at the end of Atlantic Avenue in lieu of current 
proposed blow-off.  Blow off detail can be deleted.  This additional hydrant will also help with 
unidirectional flushing of the waterlines. 
 

56. Sheet C6.0 doesn’t show any utilities besides the waterline.  As shown it would appear there are 
no conflicts with the waterline, however previous comments indicate waterline should be installed 
underneath telephone and fiber optic lines. 
 

57. On sheet C7.0, telephone pedestals, electric transformers, etc are not shown.  Conflicts are not 
known at this time.  Locations should be provided and coordinated with other utilities in final 
drawings. 
 

58. On sheet C7.0, there appears to be a conflict between the water and sewer services for Lot 4 
within the easement.  Sewer service shall include cleanout at all bends. 
 

59. Detail 2/C8.0 needs to reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines. 
 

60. Details 1&2/C8.0, similar to previous comments, it appears roadside ditches could negatively 
impact road platform and other utilities. 
 

61. Detail 3/C8.0 needs to reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines. 
 

62. Detail 5/C8.0 needs to reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines.  Restraining glands are not 
acceptable, megalugs are required.  Note 1 needs to reflect the Town’s approved manufacturer for 
the fire hydrant, refer to Appendix D Standard Construction Specifications of the Municipal Code.  
Note 2 shall change to pipe to PVC.  Note 4, bolts to be suitable for MJ fittings.  Bolts shall be Cor-
Ten or stainless steel.  Hot dipped galvanized bolts are not acceptable.  Note 4 and 6, reference to 
rods should be deleted.  MJ fittings with thrust blocks should be adequate. 
 

63. Consider deleting detail 6/C8.0, two fire hydrant details are not needed. 
 

64. Detail 1/C8.1.  Why is this detail provided?  There is no reference/indication in the drawings where 
tap sleeve is being utilized.  If not using detail should be deleted. 
 

65. Detail 4/C8.1 needs reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines and services.  End of water service stub 
out should be marked with a blue painted 2x4 per the Municipal Code.  Meter shall be Badger 
Meter Recordall Disc Meter with Recordall Transmitter Register and Orion Water Endpoint for 
mobile meter reading. 
 

66. All details with equipment callouts should be cross referenced with Appendix D Standard 
Construction Specifications of the Municipal Code.  There are many instances that need to 
updated. 
 

67. On detail 1/C8.3, end of sewer service stub out should be mark with a green painted 2x4 per the 
Municipal Code. 
 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

49

9.



I:\2013\2013-471  Town of Paonia\009-RiverbankSub\A-Corresp\L 20201124 UPDATEDRiverbankSubdivisionEngReview.doc 

68. Detail 2/C8.3 should be deleted as all sewer services proposed for this project will be new, 
therefore requiring a full body wye per the Municipal Code. 
 

69. Additional notes/specifications shall be added to sheets C0.1 and/or C0.2 for pipeline acceptance 
testing for both sanitary sewer and waterlines.  Sanitary sewer lines shall be televised.  Sanitary 
sewer lines shall also be tested using a low-pressure air test.  Sanitary sewer manholes shall also 
be tested for leakage.  Waterlines shall be hydrostatically tested and disinfected.  Refer to 
Appendix D Standard Construction Specifications of the Municipal Code for specific requirements.   
 

 
Upon your receipt and review, if you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to call. 
 
 
Respectfully,  
SGM 
 
 
 
Brandyn Bair, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
 
cc: Travis Loberg, Public Works Director, Town of Paonia 
 Bo Nerlin, Town Attorney 
 
 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

50

9.



 

   
 

 

1 
 

January 12, 2021 
 
Corinne Ferguson 
Town Manager 
Town of Paonia 
214 Grand Avenue 
Paonia, CO 81428 
 
Re:   Reply to SGM Engineering Review Comments for Riverbank Neighborhood Subdivision 
  
Ms. Corinne Ferguson: 
 
Thank for providing review comments  
 
 
 

1. On sheet C0.1, note 21 states 4 foot of cover over waterlines. Town of Paonia’s minimum cover  
over waterlines is 5 feet.  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: NOTE STATES 5 FEET INSTEAD OF 4.  

 
2. On sheet C0.1, note 24 should include requirements regarding the SUE (Subsurface Utility 

Engineering) requirements for Colorado per Senate Bill 18-167.  This project involves excavation 
over 2 foot deep and more than 1,000 contiguous square feet.  Quality levels (A-D) need to be 
accurately described.  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: NOTE REFERENCES ASCE 38-02 AND QUALITY LEVEL 
DECRIPTIONS ADDED.    

 
3. On sheet C0.1, text size for the Erosion Control Notes appear to be smaller for the rest of the 

notes.  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: UPDATED PER REVIEW COMMENT  

 
4. On sheet C0.1, note #2 under Water System Notes need to be changed to reflect 5 feet of cover 

over the top of the waterline.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 
 
 

 

51

10.



 

   
 

 

2 
 

5. On sheet C0.1, notes 1.3 and 3.2 under Water System Appurtenances are very similar, consider 
deleting note 1.3.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

6. On sheet C0.1, delete section 5 under Water System Appurtenances referencing butterfly valves. 
SGM didn’t find any references/use of butterfly valves in the project documents.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
7. On sheet C0.1, section 6 under Water System Appurtenances could be deleted, as they’re not 

relevant to the project.  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

8. On sheet C0.1, section 7 under Water System Appurtenances could be deleted, as they’re not 
relevant to the project.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
9. On sheet C0.1, note 8.1 under Water System Appurtenances, need to be revised to include the 

right entity, Town of Paonia, not ACWWA, and the appropriate standard drawing references. 
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

10. On sheet C0.1, section 9 under Water System Appurtenances, need to be revised to include the 
right entity, Town of Paonia, not ACWWA, and the appropriate standard drawing references.  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
11. On sheet C0.1, note 10.1 under Water System Appurtenances, need to be revised to include the  

right entity, Town of Paonia, not ACWWA, and the appropriate standard drawing references. 
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 
 

52

10.



 

   
 

 

3 
 

12. On sheet C0.1, note 11.1.2, shall be changed to read “compressive strength of 3,000 psi”.  This 
change will match what is called out in the details.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
13. On sheet C0.1, HDPE (High Density Polyethylene) Pipe and Fittings section.  Town of Paonia 

code requires C900 PVC for waterlines and SDR 35 PVC for gravity sewer lines.  The Town will 
allow HDPE for the waterline, however the HDPE must be DIPS sizing to allow the use of ductile 
iron pipe fittings for future maintenance/repair.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED.  

 
14. On sheet C0.1, notes 2A.02.D and 2B.02.D, references electrofusion saddle/services taps. 

Electrofusion saddle/service tap will not be accepted. Town of Paonia requires the use of 
traditional double strap tapping saddles as specified in the current Town of Paonia specifications 
within the Municipal Code.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
15. On sheet C0.1, notes 2A.03.C and 2B.03.C.  Details provided in the drawings make no reference 

to tracer wire.  Tracer wire is required on all new pipes per SUE regulations.  Town requires 
tracer wire to be No. 12 gauge solid copper.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED.  NOTE HAS BEEN ADDED TO DETAILS 
SPECIFYING TRACER WIRE. 

 
16. On sheet C0.2, consider deleting note 3 under the Sanitary Sewer Material Specification for Pipe 

and Fittings as the proposed sewer line is only 8-inch diameter.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

17. On sheet C0.2, consider deleting note 4 under the Sanitary Sewer Material Specification for Pipe 
and Fittings as there are not pressure sewer lines proposed for the project.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

 

53

10.



 

   
 

 

4 
 

18. On sheet C0.2, note 2 under Sanitary Sewer Installation Specifications, references to subsections 
9-3-5 and 9-3-6 need to be updated and/or deleted.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
19. On sheet C0.2, note 4 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration Specifications, 

reference to subsection 9-4-3 needs to be updated and/or deleted.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
20. On sheet C0.2, note 13 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration Specifications, 

reference to subsection 9-6 needs to be updated and/or deleted.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

21. On sheet C0.2, note 15.1 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration 
Specifications, reference to subsection 9-5-10 needs to be updated and/or deleted.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

22. On sheet C0.2, suggest changing note 15.3.1 to every 100 linear feet of trench instead of every 
400 linear feet.  This will ensure the entire trench section will get tested versus large sections of 
the trench going untested using the 400 foot interval.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

23. On sheet C0.2, delete note 15.3.2.  Quality assurance testing is in the Town best interests.  If 
testing is not complete the Town could accept a substandard product.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
24. On sheet C0.2, note 15.3.3 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration 

Specifications, reference to subsection 9-3-7 needs to be updated and/or deleted.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 
. 

54

10.



 

   
 

 

5 
 

 
25. On sheet C0.2, note 16 under Removals, Excavation, Backfilling and Restoration Specifications, 

reference to subsection 9-2-5 needs to be updated and/or deleted. 
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 

 
26. On sheet C0.2, note 4 under Final Inspection and Acceptance, change reference of Montrose 

Submittal Standards to Town of Paonia.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

27. General comment regarding notes and specific materials/manufacturers.  Plans need to 
reflect/match the Town approved specifications.  Refer to Appendix D, Standard Construction 
Specifications.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTING SPECS WITH TOWN HAVE BEEN REMOVED 
AND TOWN STANDARDS ARE REFERENCED. 
 

28. On sheet C2.0, lots 1 and 4 within the 100 flood zone designation AE.  Notes should be provided 
on the plans as necessary documenting the construction needs to be 1 foot above base flood 
elevations.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: NOTE ADDED TO SHEET C2.0, UNDER PROJECT LEGEND.    

 
29. On sheet C2.0, 10’ drainage easement on the western edge of Lot 1 appears small in width for 

future maintenance.  Unclear in the plans if there is a drainage ditch within this easement.  Also 
unclear if the easement should include maintenance/access descriptions.  Same situation applies 
between lots 5/6 and 13/15.  
 
 ODISEA RESPONSE: DRAINAGE EASEMENTS HAVE BEEN INCREASED TO 15’.   

 
30. On sheet C2.0, 10’ utility easement doesn’t seem large enough in width for future maintenance of 

waterline.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: WATERLINE HAS BEEN MOVED WITHIN ROADWAY.    
 

31. On sheet C3.0, plan and profiles should be provided for all culverts.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: INVERT ELEVATIONS, PIPE MATERIAL, AND LENGTH ARE 
CALLED OUT ON SHEET C3.0.  ALONG WITH SPOT ELEVATIONS, THIS LEVEL OF 
DETAIL ALONG WITH DETAIL 03/C8.3 IS SUFFICIENT. 

 

55

10.



 

   
 

 

6 
 

32. Riprap recommended and inlet/outlet of all culverts to help with erosion/sediment control.  
Details shall be provided  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: RIPRAP HAS BEEN ADDED TO ALL CULVERTS. 

 
33. On sheet C3.0, depth of road side ditches are undefined.  It appears ditch could have negative 

impact on shallow utilities and current waterline location.  Ditch appears to be approximately 5 
foot deep, but hard to tell with no finished contour labels or profiles of culverts.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: SPOT ELEVATIONS HAVE BEEN ADDED TO DITCHES.  

 
34. No construction details are provided for the detention basins.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: SEE SHEET C8.3 FOR DETENTION BASIN DETAILS.  

 
35. Do drainage easements around detention basins need to also be access easements for future 

maintenance?  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: EASEMENT HAVE BEEN ADDED FOR THE DETENTION BASIN 
II, BASIN I IS WITHIN A PROPOSED 20’ IRRIGATION-UTILITY EASEMENT.   

 
36. It appears from the current design all driveways will require culverts.  These culverts would all be 

within the Town’s right of way.  Covenants need to reflect that the homeowner is responsible for 
installing and maintaining driveway culverts.    

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: HOA WILL ADOPT A RESOLUTION OR COVENANTS WILL BE 
AMENDED TO REFLECT HOMEOWNER RESPONSIBILITY FOR INSTALLING AND 
MAINTAINING DRIVEWAYS.  

 
37. Who is maintaining ditches throughout the subdivision?  Covenants need to reflect the 

subdivision/HOA is responsible for maintaining the ditches within the subdivision.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: FELDMAN DITCH MAINTAINED BY FELDMAN, HOA DITCH 
MAINTAINED BY HOA WHICH IS IN THE CONVENANTS. 

 
38. On sheet C4.0, what happens to the drainage at low point of road at station 2+72.45?  Currently, 

drainage will sheet flow off the road at this location with consideration to erosion control.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: ROADSIDE DITCHES HAVE BEEN ADDED. 
 
 

 

56

10.



 

   
 

 

7 
 

39. No details provided for connecting Atlantic Avenue to Price Road.  SGM assumes that saw 
cutting of at least 1 foot into Price Road for connection.  Drawings should include spot elevations, 
stationing, curve data, etc. 

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: SAW CUT AND MILLING DETAIL HAS BEEN ADDED, SEE 
DETAIL 04/C8.0  
 

40. SGM recommends curbs, gutter, and sidewalks per Municipal Code section 17-4-40 (l).  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: DEVELOPER SEEKING VARIANCE FROM TOWN OF PAONIA.  

 
41. It appears Atlantic Avenue is a dead end street.  Municipal Code Section 17-4-40 (g) requires no 

more than 500 feet from connecting street (Price Road).  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: DEVELOPER SEEKING VARIANCE FROM TOWN OF PAONIA 
FOR EXCEEDING MAXIMUM DEAD LENGTH, ADDING 50’ RADIUS CUL-DE-SAC TO 
DESIGN 

 
42. SGM recommends cul-de-sac at the end of Atlantic Avenue versus emergency turnaround per 

Municipal Code Section 17-4-40 (g).  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: CUL-DE-SAC ADDED TO DESIGN 
 

43. If emergency turnarounds are utilized, Developer shall provide information from Fire Department 
and other emergency services that emergency turnaround are of acceptable size.  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: NEED COORDINATION AND LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 
APPROVAL.  

 
44. No details for provided for construction of emergency turnarounds.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: EMERGENCY TURNAROUND TO BE CONSTRUCTED PER ROAD 
SECTION DETAIL 01/C8.0, RADIUS DIMENSIONS ADDED TO PLANS.  

 
45. Appears potential driveway for Lot 16 would be obstructed by emergency turnaround.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CUL-DE-SAC HAS BEEN ADDED.  

 
46. Road grade shown on profile between station 14+10.11 and station 15+41.52 is 0.39%. Minimum 

per Municipal Code section 17-4-40 (h) is 0.5%.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: ROAD GRADE ADJUSTED AND CUL-DE-SAC ADDED.   
 

57

10.



 

   
 

 

8 
 

47. On all sheets, but noted here on sheet C2.0, existing waterline and existing manhole at station 
2+31 appear to be in conflict.  Developer should verify location of existing utilities prior to tying 
in new infrastructure.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CALLOUT HAS BEEN ADDED TO SHEET C2.0 TO VERIFY 
LOCATION OF UTILITIES BEFORE INSTALLATION OF NEW INFRASTRUCTURE  

 
48. On sheet C5.0, it is recommended that sanitary sewer should be installed on one side of Atlantic 

Avenue and potable water should be installed on the other side with a minimum of 10 foot 
horizontal separation.  This recommendation will result in additional manholes to navigate 
thecurves in the road.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: SANITARY SEWER AND WATER LINE LAYOUT UPDATED PER 
REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS. 

 
49. Water service note in profile of sanitary sewer at station 2+50 is misleading about 5 foot 

minimum cover as the current details in proposed plan show 4 foot of cover over proposed 
waterline.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: UPDATED PER REVIEW COMMENT. 

 
50. Details need to be provided for connecting to existing manhole at station 2+30.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: SEE DETAIL 03/C8.2.   

 
51. Discrepancy between general sewer notes on sheet C0.2 and pipe callouts in profile on sheet 

C5.0.  Sheet C0.2 calls out pipe to conform to ASTM 3034, SDR35.  Sheet C5.0 calls out SDR 26 
HDPE.  Town code requires sanitary sewer pipe be 8-inch SDR 35.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: UPDATED PER REVEW COMMENT, SDR 26 HDPE HAS BEEN 
REMOVED   

 
52. On sheet C6.0, waterline needs be installed with the pavement section of Atlantic Avenue.  

Waterline should not be installed outside of the pavement and underneath underground telephone 
and fiber optic lines.    

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: WATERLINE RELOCATED TO UNDER ROADWAY.   

 
53. SGM recommends provided a profile of the waterline to be able to identify any potential piping 

conflicts with other utilities.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: WATERLINE RELOCATED TO UNDER ROADWAY. 
 

58

10.



 

   
 

 

9 
 

54. Details need to be provided for connecting to existing waterline near station 0+00 of waterline.  
Why is the waterline stationing different than the road/sanitary sewer stationing? 

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: ANNOTATION ON SHEET C6.0 STATES CONNECTION TO 
EXISTING WATER LINE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TOWN CODE AND PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR.  WATERLINE STATIONING NOW REFERENCES ROADWAY STATIONING.   

 
55. Town of Paonia prefers installing additional hydrant at the end of Atlantic Avenue in lieu of 

current proposed blow-off.  Blow off detail can be deleted.  This additional hydrant will also help 
with unidirectional flushing of the waterlines.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: UPDATED PER REVIEW COMMENT.    

 
56. Sheet C6.0 doesn’t show any utilities besides the waterline.  As shown it would appear there are 

no conflicts with the waterline, however previous comments indicate waterline should be 
installed underneath telephone and fiber optic lines.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: CONFLICTS SHOWN ON SHEET C7.0, WATERLINE HAS BEEN 
MOVED WITHIN ROADWAY 

 
57. On sheet C7.0, telephone pedestals, electric transformers, etc are not shown.  Conflicts are not 

known at this time.  Locations should be provided and coordinated with other utilities in final 
drawings.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: TELEPHONE PEDESTALS, ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMERS 
HAVE BEEN ADDED,  LOCATIONS NEED TO BE VERIFIED WITH UTILITY 
COMPANIES.   

 
58. On sheet C7.0, there appears to be a conflict between the water and sewer services for Lot 4 

within the easement.  Sewer service shall include cleanout at all bends.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: REVISED  
 

59. Detail 2/C8.0 needs to reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: UPATED PER REVIEW COMMENT.    
 

60. Details 1&2/C8.0, similar to previous comments, it appears roadside ditches could negatively 
impact road platform and other utilities.  
 
ODISEA RESPONSE: UTILITIES REMOVED FROM DITCH AREA OTHER THAN 
UTILITY CROSSINGS UNDER DITCHES.   

 
 

59

10.



 

   
 

 

10 
 

61. Detail 3/C8.0 needs to reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: REVISED    
 

62. Detail 5/C8.0 needs to reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines.  Restraining glands are not 
acceptable, megalugs are required.  Note 1 needs to reflect the Town’s approved manufacturer for 
the fire hydrant, refer to Appendix D Standard Construction Specifications of the Municipal code.  
Note 2 shall change to pipe to PVC.  Note 4, bolts to be suitable for MJ fittings.  Bolts shall be 
Cor-Ten or stainless steel.  Hot dipped galvanized bolts are not acceptable.  Note 4 and 6, 
reference to rods should be deleted.  MJ fittings with thrust blocks should be adequate.  

 
 ODISEA RESPONSE: REVISED, THIS IS NOW DETAIL 06/C8.0. 

 
63. Consider deleting detail 6/C8.0, two fire hydrant details are not needed.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: DELETED 

 
64. Detail 1/C8.1.  Why is this detail provided?  There is no reference/indication in the drawings 

where tap sleeve is being utilized.  If not using detail should be deleted.  
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: DELETED  
 

65. Detail 4/C8.1 needs reflect the 5 foot cover for waterlines and services.  End of water service stub 
out should be marked with a blue painted 2x4 per the Municipal Code.  Meter shall be Badger 
Meter Recordall Disc Meter with Recordall Transmitter Register and Orion Water Endpoint for 
mobile meter reading.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: REVISED, THIS IS NOW DETAIL 03/C8.1.  

 
66. All details with equipment callouts should be cross referenced with Appendix D Standard 

Construction Specifications of the Municipal Code.  There are many instances that need to 
updated.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: UPDATED PER REVIEW COMMENT.    

 
67. On detail 1/C8.3, end of sewer service stub out should be mark with a green painted 2x4 per the 

Municipal Code. 
 

ODISEA RESPONSE: UPDATED PER REVIEW COMMENT.  SEE DETAIL 05/C8.2. 
 

68. Detail 2/C8.3 should be deleted as all sewer services proposed for this project will be new, 
therefore requiring a full body wye per the Municipal Code.  

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: UPDATED PER REVIEW COMMENT.   

60

10.



 

   
 

 

11 
 

69. Additional notes/specifications shall be added to sheets C0.1 and/or C0.2 for pipeline acceptance 
testing for both sanitary sewer and waterlines.  Sanitary sewer lines shall be televised.  Sanitary 
sewer lines shall also be tested using a low-pressure air test.  Sanitary sewer manholes shall also 
be tested for leakage.  Waterlines shall be hydrostatically tested and disinfected.  Refer to 
Appendix D Standard Construction Specifications of the Municipal Code for specific 
requirements. 

 
ODISEA RESPONSE: NOTES HAVE BEEN REVISED TO INCLUDE TESTING METHODS 
IN ACCORDANACE WITH TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE.   

 
Please call with any question or further clarification regarding responses to engineering review comments. 
 
Very Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Jeff Ruppert, P.E.  
Principal 
 
(970) 527-9540 
jeff@odiseanet.com  
 
 
 
 

61

10.



62

11.



Received via e-mail 3/25/21 - cf 
 

Dear Town of Paonia Board of Trustees, 
 
Although I have no problem with residential subdivision development in Paonia, I am concerned about 
various issues with the proposed Riverbank Neighborhood PUD: 
 

1. How can this project be named the “Riverbank Neighborhood” when the land along the 
riverbank is, in reality, owned by myself and my fellow neighbors within Riverside Estate 
Subdivision?   

2. Will we be compensated for the use of our property by those who don’t own it?   
3. Will we watch the natural wildlife habitat on our river bank be usurped by this project and 

developed by those who don’t own it?   
4. Will I be liable if someone injures themselves or drowns in the river on my property? 
5. For years we have enjoyed watching seasonal migration of deer and elk along our 

riverbank.  This project will surely with end that! 
 
As well as my personal concerns, the sole project entry and Lots 1 and 4 are almost entirely within the 
100 year flood plain.  In my opinion and having lived on the North Fork River for over 20 years, flooding 
of the only neighborhood access and lots 1 and 4 may cause undue costs to the Town of Paonia and 
heartache for the future homeowners of these lots! 
 
Thank you for your consideration! 
 
Sincerely, 
Michael P. Arnold  RLA (#250 CO) 
 

 
  

Paonia, CO 81428 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 

63

11.



64

12.



65

12.



66

12.



67

12.



68

12.



69

12.



70

12.



71

12.



72

12.



73

12.



74

12.



75

12.



76

12.



77

12.



78

12.



79

12.



80

12.



81

12.



82

12.



83

12.



84

12.



85

12.



86

12.



87

12.



88

12.



89

12.



90

12.



91

12.



92

12.



93

12.



94

12.



95

12.



96

12.



97

12.



98

12.



99

12.



100

12.



101

12.



102

12.



103

12.



104

12.



105

12.



106

12.



107

12.



108

12.



109

12.



110

12.



111

12.



112

12.



113

12.



... 

Ill►Engineering 
I Group, Ine . 

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION 
SUBGRADE INVESTIGATION AND PAVEMENT DESIGN 

Backhouse Subdivision 
Residential Buildings and Pavement 

Paonia, Colorado 

Prepared For: 

Mr.RusselBackhouse 
23 Alder Court 

Paonia, Colorado 81416 

Job No. 2,287 

April 24, 2006 
Revised: July 20, 2006 

Geotechnical, Environmental and Materials Testing Consultants 
Grand Junction - Montrose - Moab - Crested Butte 

(970) 245-4078 • fax (970) 245-7115 • geotechnicalgroup.com
2308 Interstate Avenue, Grand Junction, Colorado 81505

ITEM #1

114

12.

TownClerk
Highlight



115

12.



116

12.



117

12.



118

12.



119

12.



120

12.



121

12.



122

12.



123

12.



124

12.



125

12.



126

12.



127

12.



128

12.



129

12.



130

12.



131

12.



132

12.



133

12.



134

12.



135

12.



136

12.



137

12.



138

12.



139

12.



"phase 2"

ITEM 2

140

13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657921

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL DISTRICT #50

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK461, PG1002

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #578928

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAYTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #592416

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK440, PG1780

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631996

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK788, PG826

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA COUNTY JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDHORST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK454, PG968

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARNOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #564623

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #630305

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631997

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PAONIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK876, PG24

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER WELL &

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #592672

AutoCAD SHX Text
& HOPS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657769

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 33%%d01'05" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELK LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE OF THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH FORK OF THE GUNNISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
882763.3 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.266 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH & POND  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
42' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH FORK OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUNNISON RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH FORK OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUNNISON RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE-HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MH-6 @ 5619'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT MH-7 @ 5621.3' (rise 0.6%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5626'

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 2 61267 ft2 1.41 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 3 HOA owned "grazeland" 81435 ft2 1.87 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 1 71325 ft2 1.64 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 4 42387 ft2 0.97 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 5 44369 ft2 1.02 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 33%%d01'05" E  93.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 7 34461 ft2 0.79 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
42' RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 6 41626 ft2 0.96 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT for town to loop waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
"evergreen buffer" EASEMENT 7146 ft2 0.16 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
"evergreen buffer" EASEMENT 4878 ft2 0.11 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' EASEMENT for Feldman & HOA DITCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY & IRRIGATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' EASEMENT HOA DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY & IRRIGATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SHARED DRIVEWAY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY VEHICLE TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
42' RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 8 46784 ft2 1.07 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 9 52431 ft2 1.20 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 10 49648 ft2 1.14 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 11 48844 ft2 1.12 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 12 48875 ft2 1.12 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 13 45775 ft2 1.05 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 14 44840 ft2 1.03 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 15 41776 ft2 0.96 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
lot 16 61900 ft2 1.42 acre

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5627'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5631'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5627'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5636'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5636'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5635'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5632'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5635'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5633'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5635'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5635'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5636'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5638'

AutoCAD SHX Text
+5639'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY VEHICLE TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
Price road

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' TRAIL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOA DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FELDMAN DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FELDMAN DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' RESERVED FOR SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' BRIDGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Paonia Riverbank Neighborhood low density: phase 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
June 6, 2020

TownClerk
Highlight



318731307003 200 ft Parcel Buffer
TaxPIN Owner Name

324506210002 RUBY MOUNTAIN 

PARTNERS INC (1/2 

INT)

324506200009 SMITH CHARLES 

BARRY

324506211002 CHOI REGAN E

324506200007 PAYTE LINDA

318731400008 PAONIA TOWN OF

318731400010 DEPT OF HWYS STATE 

OF COLO

324506209010 LAGNIAPPE 

PROPERTIES WEST 

LLC

324506208007 AG GLOGAL COOLING 

LLC

324506201006 PAONIA TOWN OF

318731300047 GARVER RICHARD D

324506204001 SMITH CHARLES 

BARRY

318731300070 ZIMMERMAN 

MARTIN TIGHE

324506200006 LEWIS ROBERT B

324506202002 KIRSTATTER ARNOLD 

J

324506201005 ARNOLD MICHAEL P

324506109004 WINDHORST CAROL 

M

324506174003 COOPER MARK

324506204004 MOORE MURRILL 

FAMILY TRUST

318731303002 WEST ELK LAND & 

HOPS LLC

324506200023 CUMPSTON 

MICHELLE

324506211001 BRETON PEARL M

324506200010 PATTERSON 

CHRISTINA M

324506210001 HINYARD PATRICK W

324506210003 BURGE STEVE

318731400007 DELTA COUNTY JOINT 

SCHOOL DIST 50

318731300048 SALONE DAPHNE A

324506203004 CHISHOLM DANIEL E

318731307003 OLD WORLD LLC

Page 1 of 2

ITEM 3

141

14.

TownClerk
Highlight



TaxPIN Owner_Name

318731307001 OLD WORLD LLC

318731307002 OLD WORLD LLC

142

14.



Page 2 of 2

143

14.



144

15.



145

15.



146

15.



147

15.



148

16.



149

16.



150

16.



151

16.



152

16.



153

16.



154

16.



155

16.



156

16.



157

16.



158

16.



159

16.



160

16.



161

16.



162

16.



163

16.



164

16.



165

16.



166

16.



167

16.



168

16.



169

16.



170

16.



171

16.



172

16.



173

16.



174

16.



175

16.



DEVELOPMENT REVIEW LIST: 

Black Hills Energy 

Delta Montrose Electric Company 

DMEA – Elevate 

TDS Telecom 

Spectrum 

Adjacent Ditch Companies 

Delta County 

Delta County School District 50 

ITEM 6

176

17.

TownClerk
Highlight



177

17.



 
 

March 17, 2021 

 

Town of Paonia 

214 Grand Ave 

Paonia, CO 81428 

 

RE: Application of Subdivision – Riverbank Neighborhood 

Old World, LLC 

Lots 1, 2, and 3 of Riverbank Minor Subdivision #2 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

The Delta County Planning & Community Development Department has reviewed the proposed 

Application of Subdivision for the Riverbank Neighborhood. Department review is as follows: 

 

 Preliminary Engineering Plan, Title Sheet C0.0, Parcel ID# needs to be fixed to 

reflect the correct Parcel #, which is 318731307003.  

 Preliminary Engineering Plan, Proposed Site Plan C2.0, the 10’ irrigation pipeline 

easement that is called out on Lot 3, Phase 1, should be checked for accuracy; a 

search of Reception #636433, yielded no results. 

 In the letter addressed to Corinne Ferguson, Town of Paonia, it is stated under the 

section ‘time-frame’ that Phase 1 comprises Lots 1 & 2, for which water and sewer 

taps have already been purchased. It then goes on to Phase 2, which includes Lots 4 – 

9, and Phase 3, which includes Lots 10-16; there is no mention of Lot 3. Which phase 

does Lot 3 fall under? 

 For clarification: it is stated in the application that there will be 3 phases of the 

subdivision, but then there is only 2 phases of grading; should there be 3 phases of 

grading to coincide with the 3 phases of the subdivision development? 

 An Access Application for Price Rd. will need to be filled out and submitted to the 

Delta County Planning Department; Price Rd. is located in the unincorporated area of 

178

17.



 
Delta County and is a County maintained Rd.; the District #3 Road & Bridge 

Foreman, John Allen, will need to approve the access to ensure it is adequate enough 

to support the traffic of a 16 Lot Subdivision. 

 Price Rd. is classified as a Local Service Road with a 60’ right-of-way (ROW) width. 

30’ of road ROW will need to be deeded to the County. Please include detail of Price 

Rd. on the Preliminary Plat, as it reflects the access point for the Subdivision. 

 In regards to drainage: it appears there is drainage coming from the school property, 

across the proposed lots on the east side of the subdivision; where is this going? Will 

drainage be piped? Will it flow into the HOA Ditch and then flow down towards 

Price Rd.? The County’s concern is Price Rd.; we want to make sure that there is 

sufficient infrastructure on Price Rd. to support the drainage of the subdivision. 

 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Kate Kelly 

Planning & Community Development Technician II 

(970) 874-2107 

kkelly@deltacounty.com 

 

179

17.

mailto:kkelly@deltacounty.com


© 2020 Microsoft Corporation © 2020 HERE 

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28
N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION: SHEET INDEX:

SITE

PAONIA RIVERBANK NEIGHBORHOOD
PAONIA, CO 81428
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PLAN

PROJECT TEAM:

PROJECT INFO:
LOCATION:
SITE ADDRESS: PAONIA, CO 81428

SITE COORDINATES: 38.871498, -107.602172

COUNTY: DELTA

TOWNSHIP: PAONIA

PROPERTY INFORMATION:
PARCEL ID#: 318-731-307-003

LEGAL SUMMARY: PAONIA 81428 SUBDIVISION: RIVERBANK NEIGHBORHOOD SUB #2 Lot: 3 
19.877AC +/- LOT 3 RIVERBANK NEIGHBORHOOD MINOR SUBDIVISION #2 
SEC31 T13S R91W 6PM R-657768 R-704943 R-704944PLAT

OLD WORLD, LLC CONTACT: IVO RENKEMA

BREDERODESTRAAT 14 EMAIL: IVO@OPENBOOK.PUB
1901 HW CASTRICUM
THE NETHERLANDS

PHONE: 612.730.3116

DEVELOPER:

CIVIL ENGINEER:

ODISEA, LLC CONTACT: JEFF RUPPERT

6 THIRD STREET EMAIL: JEFF@ODISEANET.COM
PAONIA, CO 81428 PHONE: 970.527.9540

EXISTING CONDITIONS
THE EXISTING SITE CONSISTS OF ONE PARCEL ZONED R-2.  THE MAJORITY OF THE AREA TO BE DEVELOPED IS PASTURED
GRASSLAND

DEVELOPED CONDITIONS
· THE PROPOSED ONSITE DEVELOPMENT CONSISTS OF SUBDIVIDING THE EXISTING PARCEL INTO SIXTEEN LOTS WITH ONE LOT

BEING DESIGNATED AS OPEN SPACE FOR THE HOA.
· INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE INSTALLED WILL INCLUDE: (1) ATLANTIC AVENUE , (2) DOMESTIC WATER, (3) SANITARY SEWER, (4)

IRRIGATION DITCHES.

NATURE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY AND ESTIMATED TIME TABLE

PHASE A:

INSTALL ROADWAY AND UTILITIES THROUGH LOTS 1 AND 2.

ESTIMATED START DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PHASE TBD

ESTIMATED END DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PHASE TBD

INSTALL ROADWAY AND UTILITIES THROUGH LOTS 3 AND 9.

ESTIMATED START DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PHASE TBD

ESTIMATED END DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PHASE TBD

PHASE B:

LOCATION MAP:VICINITY MAP:

SITE

C0.0

TITLE
SHEET

ABBREVIATIONS
AB

APPROX

AVE

BMP

BSL

C/L

CMP

CONC

CSP

DB

DIA

DWG

ECM

EG

EP

ELEC

ESMT

ETW

(E)

FG

FIP

FIR

FL

FO

FR

FS

FT

HQW

IPS

LB

LF

LP

MAX

MIN

(N)

O/H

OAE

P/L

PC

PG

PP

R

RD

R/W

AGGREGATE BASE

APPROXIMATE

AVERAGE

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

CENTERLINE

CORRUGATED METAL PIPE

CONCRETE

CORRUGATED STEEL PIPE

DEED BOOK

DIAMETER

DRAWING

EXISTING CONCRETE MONUMENT

EXISTING GRADE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

ELECTRICAL

EASEMENT

EDGE OF TRAVELED WAY

EXISTING

FINISHED GRADE

FOUND IRON PIPE

FOUND IRON ROD

FLOW LINE

FIBER OPTIC

FIBER ROLL/COMPOST SOCK

FINISHED SURFACE

FOOT, FEET

HIGH QUALITY WATER

IRON PIPE SET

POUNDS

LINEAR FEET

LIGHT POLE

MAXIMUM

MINIMUM

NEW

OVERHEAD LINE

OR APPROVED EQUAL

PROPERTY LINE

PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

PAGE

POWER POLE

RADIUS

ROAD

RIGHT-OF-WAY

R/W MON CONCRETE RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENT

SD

SF

SP

STORM DRAIN

SPT

STD

SS

TOP

TYP

UNO

SILT FENCE/SEDIMENT FENCE

SERVICE POLE

SPOT ELEVATION

STANDARD

SANITARY SEWER

TOP OF PILE

TYPICAL

UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

C0.0 TITLE SHEET

C0.1 CIVIL NOTES

C1.0 EXISTING SITE PLAN

C2.0 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

C3.0 GRADING & DRAINAGE

C4.0 ATLANTIC AVENUE PLAN & PROFILE

C5.0 SANITARY SEWER PLAN & PROFILE

C6.0 WATER DISTRIBUTION PLAN

C7.0 UTILITY PLAN

C8.0 CIVIL DETAILS

C8.1 CIVIL DETAILS

C8.2 CIVIL DETAILS

C8.3 CIVIL DETAILS

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

INSTALL ROADWAY AND UTILITIES THROUGH LOTS 10 AND 16.

ESTIMATED START DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PHASE TBD

ESTIMATED END DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PHASE TBD

PHASE C:

180

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000'



GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL WORK WITHIN THE CDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY, IF APPLICABLE, WILL REQUIRE A RIGHT-OF-WAY
EXCAVATION & CONSTRUCTION PERMIT PER CDOT REQUIREMENTS.

2. ALL SAFETY, EROSION CONTROL AND SIGNING PLANS SHALL BE SUBMITTED AND APPROVED TO THE
TOWN PRIOR TO THE COMMENCMENT OF WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE TOWN
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY OF THIS WORK.

3. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION, TOWN OF PAONIA, CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
AND STANDARD SPECIFICATION SUPPLEMENT AND THE LATEST REVISIONS THEREOF.  ANY WORK
NOT FALLING UNDER THESE SPECIFICATIONS SHALL BE PERFORMED UNDER CDOT SPECIFICATIONS.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE AN UNDERGROUND LOCATE SERVICE AT A MINIMUM OF 72 HOURS
PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY TO LOCATE ALL UTILITIES.

5. ALL PAVING REMOVAL SHALL BE SAWCUT AT THE TOWN'S DIRECTION.

6. PAVING SHALL BE SAWCUT AND REMOVED A MINIMUM OF 1' FROM CURB AND GUTTER
CONSTRUCTION OR RECONSTRUCTION.

7. THE PROTECTION AND ADJUSTMENT OF ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
CONTRACTOR. A DETAILED UTILITY SURVEY HAS NOT BEEN PERFORMED, THEREFORE LOCATIONS
AND DISTANCING OF OBJECTS, I.E. STREET SIGNS, LIGHT POLES, FIRE HYDRANTS ETC. SHALL BE
CONFIRMED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION BY THE CONTRACTOR.

8. ALL DISTURBED OBJECTS AND LANDSCAPING ON NEIGHBORING PROPERTIES SHALL BE RETURNED
TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION PER APPROVAL OF PROPERTY OWNER AND/OR THE TOWN OF
PAONIA.

9. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PROTECT AND/OR RELOCATE ALL TRAFFIC
SIGNS AND TRAFFIC SIGNALS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR AS REQUIRED BY THE TOWN.

10. REPORTS OF COMPACTION WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO AND ACCEPTED BY
THE TOWN ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACING ANY PAVING.

11. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTACT THE TOWN ENGINEER FOR OBSERVATION OF
ANY WORK.  FAILURE TO CONTACT THE ENGINEER WITH QUESTIONS PRIOR TO PERFORMING ANY
WORK MAY RESULT IN THE CONTRACTOR ASSUMING COMPLETE LIABILITY FOR UTILITIES, PUBLIC OR
PRIVATE PROPERTY THAT IS DAMAGED.

12. IN THE EVENT THAT EXISTING STRIPING IS OBLITERATED BY CONSTRUCTION, IT WILL BE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO REPLACE SAID STRIPING.

13. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, ALL SURVEY POINTS THAT MAY BE DISTURBED SHALL BE TIED OUT AND A
CORNER RECORD OF EACH POINT SHALL BE FILED WITH THE TOWN SURVEYOR AND COUNTY. A
COPY OF THE RECORDED CORNER RECORD SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE TOWN'S PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION.

14. FOLLOWING THE COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION, A CORNER RECORD OF EACH POINT THAT WAS
DISTURBED SHALL BE FILED WITH THE TOWN SURVEYOR AND COUNTY. A COPY OF THE RECORDED
CORNER RECORD SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE TOWN'S PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION PRIOR TO THE
RECORDING OF A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OR RELEASE OF BONDS.

15. ALL NECESSARY UTILITY CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE COMPLETED
AND APPROVED PRIOR TO PAVING PER THIS PLAN.

16. ADJUST ALL STORM DRAIN AND SEWER MANHOLES AND WATER VALVES TO GRADE AFTER PLACING
FINAL LIFT OF ASPHALT.

17. NO EXPANSIVE SOIL MAY BE USED WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.

18. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN FLOWS IN THE EXISTING WATER SYSTEM AT ALL TIMES.  SUBMIT A
PLAN FOR APPROVAL TO THE TOWN'S PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 2 WEEKS PRIOR TO THE WORK
BEING PERFORMED.

19. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO NOTIFY ALL PROPERTY OWNERS AT LEAST 7
DAYS IN ADVANCE OF ANY UTILITY OUTAGES.

20. PARCELS MAY NOT BE WITHOUT WATER FOR MORE THAN 16 HRS.

21. MAINTAIN FIVE (5) FEET OF COVER FOR ALL WATER LINES.

22. A TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN (TTCP) IS REQUIRED BEFORE ANY WORK MAY COMMENCE
WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY.

23. IN THE ABSENCE OF GEOTECHNICAL RECOMMENDATIONS OR BACKFILL DETAILS, ALL BACKFILL
SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 95% OF THE MODIFIED PROCTOR DENSITY.

24. LOCATIONS OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND UTILITIES ARE FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY.  THE
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE LOCATION AND DEPTH (ELEVATION) OF EXISTING
UTILITIES AND OTHER FIELD CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASCE STANDARD 38-02 QUALITY
LEVELS D THROUGH A PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

QUALITY LEVEL D ("QL D") - INFORMATION DERIVED FROM EXISTING RECORDS OR 
ORAL RECOLLECTIONS.

QUALITY LEVEL C ("QL C") - INFORMATION OBTAINED BY SURVEYING AND PLOTTING 
VISIBLE ABOVE-GROUND UTILITY FEATURES AND BY USING 
PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT IN CORRELATING THIS INFORMATION
TO QUALITY LEVEL D.

QUALITY LEVEL B ("QL B") - INFORMATION OBTAINED THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF 
APPROPRIATE SURFACE GEOPHYSICAL METHODS TO DETERMINE
THE EXISTENCE AND APPROXIMATE HORIZONTAL POSITION OF
SUBSURFACE UTILITIES.

QUALITY LEVEL A ("QL A") - PRECISE HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATION OF UTILITIES
OBTAINED BY THE ACTUAL EXPOSURE AND SUBSEQUENT 
MEASUREMENT OF SUBSURFACE UTILITIES, USUALLY AT A 
SPECIFIC POINT.

25. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION PLANS THAT
INCLUDE LOCATION AND SIZING OF LAUNCHING AND RECEIVING PITS, MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT
LAYOUT AND STORAGE AREAS, DETAILS FOR CONNECTIONS TO THE EXISTING PIPING SYSTEM, AND
RESTORATION PLANS.

26. A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING IS REQUIRED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT TRAVIS LOBERG,
TOWN OF PAONIA PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR, AT THE TOWN OF PAONIA A MINIMUM OF 10 BUSINESS
DAYS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION TO SCHEDULE THE MEETING. (970) 314-1811
TLOBERG@TOWNOFPAONIA.COM.

27. STREET CLEANING AND SWEEPING IS INCIDENTAL TO THE WORK.

EROSION CONTROL NOTES:

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT AN EROSION SEDIMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN FOR
APPROVAL PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

2. APPROVAL OF AN EROSION SEDIMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN (ESPCP) DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE AN APPROVAL OF PERMANENT ROAD OR DRAINAGE DESIGN (E.G., SIZE AND LOCATION
OF ROADS, PIPES, RESTRICTORS, CHANNELS, RETENTION FACILITIES, UTILITIES, ETC.

3. THE IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ESPCP AND THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPLACEMENT, AND
UPGRADING OF ESPCP FACILITIES IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL ALL
CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETED AND APPROVED AND  VEGETATION/LANDSCAPING IS ESTABLISHED.

4. THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CLEARING LIMITS SHOWN ON THE ESPCP SHALL BE CLEARLY FLAGGED IN
THE FIELD PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD, NO DISTURBANCE
BEYOND THE FLAGGED CLEARING LIMITS SHALL BE PERMITTED.  THE FLAGGING SHALL BE
MAINTAINED BY THE APPLICANT/CONTRACTOR FOR THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.

5. THE ESPCP FACILITIES SHOWN ON THE PLAN MUST BE CONSTRUCTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
CLEARING AND GRADING ACTIVITIES, AND IN SUCH A MANNER AS TO ENSURE THAT SEDIMENT AND

SEDIMENT LADEN WATER DO NOT ENTER THE DRAINAGE SYSTEM ROADWAYS OR VIOLATE
APPLICABLE WATER STANDARDS.

6. THE ESPCP FACILITIES SHOWN ON THE PLAN ARE THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR ANTICIPATED
SITE CONDITIONS.  DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD, THOSE ESPCP FACILITIES SHALL BE
UPGRADED AS NEEDED FOR UNEXPECTED STORM EVENTS, AND TO ENSURE THAT SEDIMENT AND
SEDIMENT-LADEN WATER DOES NOT LEAVE THE SITE.

7. THE ESPCP FACILITIES SHALL BE INSPECTED DAILY BY THE CONTRACTOR AND MAINTAINED AS
NECESSARY TO ENSURE THEIR CONTINUED FUNCTIONING.

8. THE ESPCP FACILITIES ON INACTIVE SITES SHALL BE INSPECTED AND MAINTAINED A MINIMUM OF
ONCE A WEEK OR WITHIN THE 24 HOURS FOLLOWING A STORM EVENT.

9. STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE BEGINNING OF
CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTAINED FOR THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT.  ADDITIONAL MEASURES
MAY BE REQUIRED TO INSURE THAT ALL PAVED AREAS ARE KEPT CLEAN FOR THE DURATION OF THE
PROJECT.

WATER - GENERAL NOTES:
1. AT ALL POINTS OF CONNECTION OF NEW WATER MAINS TO EXISTING MAINS, THE CONTRACTOR

SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR EXCAVATING AND VERIFYING LOCATION OF THE EXISTING LINES PRIOR
TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

2. EXCEPT IN CASE OF AN EMERGENCY, VALVES ON THE TOWN OF PAONIA WATER SYSTEM SHALL BE
OPERATED BY OR UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE APPROPRIATE TOWN OF PAONIA PERSONNEL. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL GIVE THE TOWN OF PAONIA ENGINEERING STAFF 48 HOURS NOTICE TO
ARRANGE FOR OPERATING VALVES.  BOTH THE CONTRACTOR AND THE APPROPRIATE TOWN OF
PAONIA PERSONNEL SHALL BE PRESENT WHEN THE VALVES ARE OPERATED.

3. WATER AND SANITARY SEWER LINES SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF TEN (10)
FEET. WHEN A TEN (10) FOOT SEPARATION IS NOT PROVIDED OR WHEN SEWER LINES CROSS WATER
LINES WITH LESS THAN ONE AND ONE-HALF (1½) FEET OF VERTICAL SEPARATION, SEWER LINE
JOINTS SHALL BE CONCRETE ENCASED.  FOR PERPENDICULAR CROSSINGS, ENCASED JOINTS SHALL
EXTEND TEN (10) FEET, PERPENDICULAR TO THE WATER LINE IN BOTH DIRECTIONS.

4. ALL WATER LINES SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF FIVE (5) FEET OF COVER AND BE LOCATED A MINIMUM
OF TEN (10) FEET FROM THE SANITARY SEWER.

5. CHANGES IN DIRECTION OF WATERLINE PIPE GREATER THAN ONE DEGREE SHALL REQUIRE FITTINGS
IN ALL INSTANCES. AXIAL DEFLECTION AT THE JOINTS SHALL NOT BE IN EXCESS OF
MANUFACTURER’S RECOMMENDATION OR IN NO CASE MORE THAN ONE DEGREE.

6. WHEN IT IS NECESSARY TO DEPRESS WATER LINES AT UTILITY CROSSINGS, A MINIMUM CLEARANCE
OF ONE AND ONE-HALF (1-1/2) FEET SHALL BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN OUTSIDES OF PIPE.

7. DISTANCES FOR WATER LINES ARE THE HORIZONTAL DISTANCE BETWEEN THE CENTERS OF THE
FITTINGS. THEREFORE, DISTANCES SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE APPROXIMATE AND COULD VARY
DUE TO VERTICAL ALIGNMENT AND FITTING DIMENSIONS.

8. ALL WATER LINE VALVES SHALL BE SET ADJACENT TO THE TEE, EXCEPT FOR POINTS THAT FALL IN
THE FLOW LINE OF A CONCRETE  CROSS PAN.  IN WHICH CASE, THE VALVE SHALL BE LOCATED SO
THAT SURFACE DRAINAGE DOES NOT INFILTRATE THE VALVE BOX.  VALVE BOXES SHALL BE SET AT
AN ELEVATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH TOWN PAVING REQUIREMENTS.

9. ALL WATER MAINS SHALL BE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PRESSURE PIPE UNLESS SPECIFIED
OTHERWISE.  NOMINAL PVC PIPE SIZES  6-INCH THROUGH 12-INCH SHALL CONFORM TO ALL
REQUIREMENTS OF AWWA STANDARD C-900, PRESSURE CLASS 150 (DR18).  ALL PVC PIPES SHALL
HAVE OUTSIDE DIAMETERS EQUIVALENT TO CAST IRON PIPE.

10. FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY INCLUDES THE FIRE HYDRANT, SIX (6) INCH VALVE, AND SIX (6) INCH PIPE.
INSTALLATION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN OF PAONIA STANDARDS AND
SPECIFICATIONS.

11. ALL FITTINGS SHALL BE MADE FROM DUCTILE IRON, FURNISHED WITH MECHANICAL JOINT ENDS, AND
SHALL HAVE A PRESSURE RATING OF 350 PSI.

12. POLYETHYLENE WRAPPING SHALL BE INSTALLED AROUND ALL DUCTILE IRON PIPES, FITTINGS,
VALVES, FIRE HYDRANT BARRELS AND ROD AND CLAMPS. THE POLYETHYLENE SHALL HAVE A
MINIMUM THICKNESS OF EIGHT (8) MILS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH AWWA STANDARD C-105.

13. ALL WATER LINE PIPE SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A MINIMUM GAGE SIZE OF 12 SINGLE STRAND
INSULATED COPPER WIRE. SPLICES IN TRACER WIRE SHALL BE CAPPED IN WATER PROOF GEL CAP
TYPE CONNECTORS SUITED FOR DIRECT BURY APPLICATION (3M TYPE DBY-6 LOW VOLTAGE OR
EQUAL). WIRE SHALL BE ATTACHED TO TOP OF WATER LINE WITH 2-INCH WIDE PVC TAPE @ 5-FT
INTERVALS ALONG PIPE. TRACER WIRE SHALL EXTEND TO THE SURFACE AND BE COILED IN A
LOCATE BOX AT THE BACKSIDE OF EITHER EACH FIRE HYDRANT OR VALVE.  UNDER THE
SUPERVISION OF TOWN OF PAONIA ENGINEERING AND/OR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF, TEST SHALL BE
MADE BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION TO INSURE THAT THE TRACER
WIRES CARRY A CONTINUOUS CURRENT BETWEEN ALL ACCESS POINTS.

14. WARNING TAPE SHALL BE INSTALLED 12” MINIMUM AND 18” MAXIMUM ABOVE WATER PIPE.

15. BEDDING MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO TOWN OF PAONIA STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

16. VALVES SHALL OPEN COUNTER CLOCKWISE. VALVES 12-INCH AND SMALLER SHALL BE RESILIENT
SEAT GATE VALVES.  LARGER VALVES SHALL BE BUTTERFLY VALVES.

17. VALVE BOXES SHALL BE RAISED TO ONE-FOURTH (1/4) INCH BELOW GRADE AFTER COMPLETION OF
SURFACE PAVING OR FINAL GRADING. VALVE BOXES IN NON-PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE A
CONCRETE COLLAR AROUND THE VALVE LID IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAIL.

18. SERVICE SADDLES SHALL BE CAST DUCTILE WITH PAINTED STEEL DOUBLE STRAP, WITH AN O-RING
GASKET SEAL ON THE MAIN. GASKETS SHALL BE NEOPRENE. SADDLES SHALL BE ROMAC STYLE 202.
NO DIRECT TAPS WILL BE ALLOWED.

19. ALL RESIDENTIAL WATER TAPS SHALL BE THREE-QUARTER (3/4) INCH OR AS REQUIRED BY THE
CURRENT BUILDING CODE.

20. ALL WATER SERVICE LATERALS SHALL EXTEND FIVE (5) FEET BEYOND RIGHT OF WAY OR UTILITY
EASEMENTS, WHICHEVER IS GREATER.  THE ENDS SHALL BE MARKED BY A BLUE PAINTED 2 x 4 POST.

21. CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS AND/OR "MEGA-LUG" MECHANICAL RESTRAINTS ARE REQUIRED AT ALL
MECHANICAL FITTINGS.  THRUST BLOCKS MAY NOT BE REQUIRED IF PIPE RESTRAINT IS PROVIDED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH RESTRAINED PIPE DETAIL.

22. NO WORK SHALL BE BACKFILLED (INCLUDING BEDDING MATERIAL ABOVE THE SPRING LINE OF THE
PIPE) UNTIL THE CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN INSPECTED AND APPROVED FOR BACKFILLING BY THE
TOWN OF PAONIA ENGINEERING AND/OR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF.

23. ONLY ONE CONNECTION TO THE EXISTING WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SHALL BE MADE UNTIL ALL
HYDROSTATIC TESTING, CHLORINATION AND FLUSHING HAS BEEN COMPLETED.

24. DISINFECTION AND HYDROSTATIC TESTING SHALL BE DONE IN THE PRESENCE OF A TOWN OF
PAONIA ENGINEERING AND/OR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF. CONTACT THE TOWN OF PAONIA DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC WORKS, FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO DISINFECTING AND/OR TESTING.

25. DISINFECTION AND FLUSHING SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND THE PROCEDURE SET FORTH IN AWWA C601, "STANDARD
FOR DISINFECTING WATER MAINS". THE CHLORINATION OF THE WATER LINE SHALL BE PERFORMED
PRIOR TO THE HYDROSTATIC TESTING. ALL VALVES, FIRE HYDRANTS AND OTHER APPURTANCES
SHALL BE OPERATED WHILE PIPELINE IS FILLED WITH THE CHLORINATING AGENT TO INSURE THAT
HIGH CHLORINE CONTACT IS MADE WITH ALL INTERNAL SURFACES.

26.  ALL WATER LINES SHALL BE HYDROSTATIC TESTED. PRESSURE AND LEAKAGE TESTS SHALL BE
CONDUCTED ACCORDING TO THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF AWWA C600/605 TO A MINIMUM
PRESSURE OF ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY (150) POUNDS PER SQUARE (PSI) INCH AT THE LOW POINT
OF THE SECTION BEING TESTED FOR THE DURATION OF TWO (2) HOURS. THE MAXIMUM LENGTH OF
LINE TO BE TESTED SHALL BE ONE THOUSAND (1,000) FEET. ALL JOINTS IN CONNECTIONS ARE TO BE
WATERTIGHT WITHIN TOLERANCES ALLOWED BY THE SPECIFICATIONS IN AWWA C600/605. ANY
LEAKAGE THAT IS DISCOVERED BY OBSERVATION OR TESTS SHALL BE LOCATED AND MADE
WATERTIGHT BY THE CONTRACTOR. PRESSURE AND LEAKAGE TESTS SHALL NOT BE CONDUCTED
UNTIL THE LINE HAS PASSED ALL REQUIRED DISINFECTION TESTS.

27. INITIAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE NEW WATER LINES ARE CONTINGENT UPON RECEIVING COPIES OF:
27.1. WATER TRENCH COMPACTION TEST RESULTS
27.2. HYDRO STATIC TESTING OF 100% OF THE SYSTEM
27.3. HEALTH DEPARTMENT TESTS. (CHLORINE AND/OR CLEAR WATER AS REQUIRED)

28. ALL METER PITS AND CURB STOPS SHALL BE PROTECTED AT THE TIME OF INSTALLATION WITH A
MINIMUM OF THREE (3) T-POSTS AND ORANGE SAFETY FENCE. THE T-POST AND SAFETY FENCE
SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE AND IN GOOD CONDITION UNTIL THE LANDSCAPING IS INSTALLED.

29. ALL WATER VAULTS SHALL BE WATER TIGHT. CONTRACTOR SHALL SEAL VAULTS TO ENSURE
SURFACE WATER DOES NOT INFILTRATE INTO THE VAULTS. VAULT LIDS SHALL BE PLACED TO
ENSURE THAT SURFACE WATER DOES NOT FLOW INTO THE VAULTS.

SANITARY SEWER - GENERAL NOTES:
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATIONS OF ALL EXISTING SEWERS

TO BE CONNECTED TO PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION STAKING.

2. CONNECTION TO EXISTING TOWN OF PAONIA LINES WILL BE PERMITTED UPON INITIAL ACCEPTANCE
OF THE NEW SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM. EXISTING PIPE AT THE POINT OF CONNECTION SHALL NOT
BE BROKEN OUT" UNTIL THE NEW SYSTEM IS ACCEPTED. IF CONNECTING TO AN EXISTING MANHOLE,
THE NEW LINE SHALL BE PLUGGED UNTIL THE NEW SYSTEM IS ACCEPTED.

3. MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATIONS BETWEEN ALL UTILITY PIPES SHALL BE EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES.  IF
VERTICAL SEPARATIONS ARE LESS THAN EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES, THE UTILITY PIPES SHALL BE
REINFORCED AND PROTECTED AS REQUIRED BY CURRENT TOWN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

4. WATER AND SANITARY SEWER LINES SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF TEN (10)
FEET. WHEN A TEN (10) FOOT SEPARATION IS NOT PROVIDED OR WHEN SEWER LINES CROSS WATER
LINES WITH LESS THAN ONE AND ONE-HALF (1½) FEET OF VERTICAL SEPARATION, SEWER LINE
JOINTS SHALL BE CONCRETE ENCASED.  FOR PERPENDICULAR CROSSINGS, ENCASED JOINTS SHALL
EXTEND TEN (10) FEET, PERPENDICULAR TO THE WATER LINE IN BOTH DIRECTIONS.

5. ALL SANITARY SEWER SERVICES AND WATER SERVICES ARE TO BE TEN (10) FEET APART.

6. SERVICE LATERALS SHALL EXTEND FIVE (5) FEET BEYOND RIGHTS OF WAY OR UTILITY EASEMENTS,
WHICHEVER IS GREATER. THE ENDS SHALL BE MARKED BY A GREEN PAINTED WOOD 2 x 4 POST.

7. THE LENGTH OF SANITARY SEWER LINE IS THE HORIZONTAL DISTANCE BETWEEN CENTER OF
MANHOLE TO CENTER OF MANHOLE. THEREFORE, THE DISTANCES INDICATED ON THE PLANS ARE
APPROXIMATE AND COULD VARY DUE TO VERTICAL ALIGNMENT AND MANHOLE DIMENSIONS.

8. SERVICE LINE CONNECTIONS TO DEAD END MANHOLES ARE NOT PERMITTED. SERVICE LINE
CONNECTINGS TO IN-LINE MANHOLES ARE NOT PERMITTED, ONLY WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE
TOWN MAY SERVICE CONNECTIONS BE ALLOWED IMMEDIATELY ABOVE OR BELOW A MANHOLE.
MINIMUM SERVICE LINE SLOPE; 4 INCHES=2%.

9. ALL FOUR (4) THROUGH FIFTEEN (15) INCH SANITARY SEWER PIPE SHALL BE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
(PVC) AND SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D-3034-SDR35, "STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR
PVC SEWER PIPE AND FITTINGS".  ANY SANITARY SEWER HAVING A DEPTH IN EXCESS OF FIFTEEN
(15) FEET SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.

10. BEDDING MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO TOWN OF PAONIA STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

11. ALL SEWER LINE PIPE SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A MINIMUM GAGE SIZE OF 12 SINGLE STRAND
INSULATED COPPER WIRE. SPLICES IN TRACER WIRE SHALL BE CAPPED IN WATER PROOF GEL CAP
TYPE CONNECTORS SUITED FOR DIRECT BURY APPLICATION (3M TYPE DBY-6 LOW VOLTAGE OR
EQUAL). WIRE SHALL BE ATTACHED TO TOP OF WATER LINE WITH 2-INCH WIDE PVC TAPE @ 5-FT
INTERVALS ALONG PIPE. TRACER WIRE SHALL EXTEND TO THE SURFACE AND BE COILED IN A
LOCATE BOX AT THE BACKSIDE OF EITHER EACH FIRE HYDRANT OR VALVE.  UNDER THE
SUPERVISION OF TOWN OF PAONIA ENGINEERING AND/OR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF, TEST SHALL BE
MADE BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION TO INSURE THAT THE TRACER
WIRES CARRY A CONTINUOUS CURRENT BETWEEN ALL ACCESS POINTS.

12. WARNING TAPE SHALL BE INSTALLED 12” MINIMUM AND 18” MAXIMUM ABOVE SEWER PIPE.

13. PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLE SECTIONS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C-478. MANHOLE
STEPS SHALL BE EPOXY-COATED CAST IRON, ALUMINUM ALLOY, PLASTIC OR OTHER APPROVED
CORROSION-RESISTANT METAL. CAST IRON RING AND COVER SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A-48.

14. MANHOLES SHALL BE A MINIMUM FOUR (4) FOOT DIAMETER AND CONSTRUCTED PER THE
STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE CARE TO PROPERLY SHAPE ALL MANHOLE INVERTS AND BENCHES IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN OF PAONIA STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS, TO PROMOTE
SMOOTH FLOW THROUGH THE MANHOLE.  INVERTS OF LINES INTERSECTING AT 90 DEGREES AND AT
HIGHLY DIVERGENT OR FLAT SLOPES ARE ESPECIALLY CRITICAL. MANHOLE INVERTS SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED WITH A SMOOTH TROWEL FINISH, AND BENCH FINISHED WITH A LIGHT BROOMED,
NON-SKID, FINISH.

16. SEWER TEES AND/OR WYES SHALL BE STAKED BY A SURVEY CREW. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
FURNISH TO THE ENGINEER "AS-CONSTRUCTED" LOCATION OF TEES AND WYES. ALL SERVICE LINES
ARE FOUR (4) INCH UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

17. THE CONTRACTOR, AT THE OWNER'S EXPENSE, WILL MAKE ALL SEWER SERVICE TAPS.

18. PRIOR TO BACKFILL THE TOWN OF PAONIA ENGINEERING AND/OR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF SHALL
INSPECT ALL SANITARY SEWER MAINS AND SERVICE EXTENSIONS.

19. MANHOLE RIMS SHALL BE SET AT AN ELEVATION RELATIVE TO THE PAVEMENT, IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TOWN OF PAONIA STANDARDS. WHETHER THE MANHOLE IS AT PAVED OR UNPAVED
GRADE, A MINIMUM OF ONE (1) AND A MAXIMUM OF FOUR (4) CONCRETE RINGS SHALL BE USED TO
ADJUST THE RIM ELEVATION TO FINAL GRADE. THE MAXIMUM ACCEPTABLE VERTICAL ADJUSTMENT
UTILIZING CONCRETE RINGS IS EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES.

20. INITIAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE NEW SANITARY SEWER MAINS IS CONTINGENT UPON COMPLETION OF
ITEMS LISTED IN THE TOWNS STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

ACCEPTANCE TESTING:
1. TESTING OF WATER LINES, SERVICES AND APPURTENANCES SHALL CONFORM TO THE

REQUIREMENTS OF AWWA AND THE APPLICABLE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS OF THE TOWN.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO PERFORM HYDROSTATIC TESTS ON ALL WATER MAINS,
LATERALS, DEAD ENDS AND SERVICE LINES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AWWA SPECIFICATIONS C600.

3. PRIOR TO MAKING THE TEST, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ADVISE THE TOWN OF THE TIME AND PLACE
OF THE TEST SO THAT ADEQUATE INSPECTION CAN BE PROVIDED.

4. PRIOR TO PERFORMANCE OF THE TEST, THE PIPELINE SHALL BE COMPLETELY FILLED WITH WATER
FOR A PERIOD OF TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS.

5. THE TEST SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE TOWN OR ITS AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE.

6. THE TESTING OF THE LINES SHALL BE DONE WITHOUT BEING CONNECTED TO EXISTING LINES
UNLESS APPROVED BY THE TOWN.

7. TESTING OF SEWER LINES AND SERVICES, MANHOLES AND APPURTENANCES SHALL CONFORM TO
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE APPLICABLE PORTIONS OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS OF THE
TOWN REGARDING LAMPING, IN- AND EX-FILTRATION AND PRESSURE TESTING.

8. SANITARY SEWER LINES SHALL BE TESTED USING LOW-PRESSURE AIR TEST.

9. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES SHALL BE TESTED FOR LEAKAGE.

10. ALL LINES SHALL BE LAMPED FROM MANHOLE TO MANHOLE.

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28
N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

C0.1

CIVIL
NOTES

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

N
.T

.S
.

181

18.



8''W

8''W

PRICE ROAD

-1.8%

-10.1%

-19.2%

-6.9%

-1
9.

0%

-2
4.4

%

-1.4%

-1.5%

-2.1%

-2.5%

-3.1%

-3.9%
-3.7%

-1.6%

-1.1%

-6.2%

-7
.1

%-1.4%

0.
0%

0.
0%

-25
.6%

-1.3%

-1.1%

-2.1%

-1.8%

-1.3%

-1
.1

%

-2
.5

%

-1
.0%

-0.8%

-1.2%

-2.1%

-3
.5%

-4.9%

-7
.9%

-6
.4

%

-7.8%

-6.9%

-0.0%

-1
.8

%

-5.0% -3
.2

%

-2.5%

-1.7%

-2.1%

-1
.3

%

-1
.8

%

-1.4%

-0.1%-1
.2

%

-0.0%

-1.4%

-0
.9%

-4
.0

%

-1
.0

%

-1.6%

-1
.3

%

-0
.0

%

-1
.2

%

-0
.0

%

-1.8%

-1.5%

-0.3%

0.
0%

-2.7%

-1
.7

%

-1.
0%

-2.3%

-1.2%

-0.0%

-1
.9

%

-4
.5

%

-1
.5

%

-8.4%

-1.3%

-5.1%

-4.5%

-1.5%
-1.0%

-0.0%

-1.7%

-1.7%

-1.7%

-5.1%

-0
.0

%

-1
.5

%

-0
.0

%

-12.3%

-2.8%

-2
.3

%

-65
.3%

-1.
5%

-2.0%

-2.0%

-2
2.

1%

-14.4%

-0.9%

-0.0%

-1.7%

-0
.1

%

-1.9%

-0.9%

-1
3.

5%

-0
.0

%

-2.7%

-15.5%

-3.8%

0.
0%

OLD WORLD, LLC
PARCEL #:

318731307003
19.877 Ac

ZONING: R-2

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING TREES OR TREELINE

DRAINAGE BASIN DELINEATION

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING WATER TAP STUB-OUT

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TAP STUB-OUT

SURVEY  SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 1.5" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND GAS

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

PROPOSED 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

100

PROJECT LEGEND

8"W

8"S

100

8''W8"W

GAS

8"S

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

C1.0

EXISTING
SITE PLAN

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

1"
 =

 6
0'

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

182

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657921

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL DISTRICT #50

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK461, PG1002

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #578928

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAYTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #592416

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK440, PG1780

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOLING LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631996

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK788, PG826

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA COUNTY JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDHORST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK454, PG968

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARNOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #564623

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #630305

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631997

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PAONIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK876, PG24

AutoCAD SHX Text
& HOPS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657769

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELK LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE OF THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH FORK OF THE GUNNISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOI, REGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #701097

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERSIDE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERSIDE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAGNIAPPE PROPERTIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
AG GLOGAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'



LOT 3
85986.7 Sq. Feet

1.974 Acres

LOT 2
56445.8 Sq. Feet

1.296 Acres

LOT 1
71040.9 Sq. Feet

1.631 Acres

LOT 4
42405.4 Sq. Feet

0.973 Acres
LOT 5

44370.1 Sq. Feet
1.019 Acres

STREET ACREAGE
64427.5 Sq. Feet

1.479 Acres

TOTAL ACREAGE
882763.3 SQ. FT.

20.265 ACRES

LOT 6
41649.1 Sq. Feet

0.956 Acres

LOT 7
52388.0 Sq. Feet

1.203 Acres

LOT 8
47864.7 Sq. Feet

1.099 Acres
LOT 10

49633.3 Sq. Feet
1.139 Acres

LOT 11
43533.6 Sq. Feet

0.999 Acres

LOT 12
47910.0 Sq. Feet

1.100 Acres

LOT 9
44548.2 Sq. Feet

1.023 Acres

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

8''S

8''S8''W

8''W

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK 6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

20' FRONT YARD SETBACK

20' FRONT YARD SETBACK

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

20' FR
O

N
T YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

20' FRONT YARD SETBACK

6' SIDE YARD SETBACK

20
'  FRONT

 YARD
 SETBACK

20' FRONT YARD SETBACK

20' FRONT YARD SETBACK

20' FRONT YARD SETBACK

20 '  FRONT  YARD  SETBACK

20' FRONT YARD SETBACK

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK
10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

10' REAR YARD SETBACK

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S
8''S

8''S

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

G
AS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

PRICE ROAD

ATLANTIC AVENUE

LOT 14
43074.7 Sq. Feet

0.989 Acres

LOT 16
63159.2 Sq. Feet

1.450 Acres
LOT 15

38194.9 Sq. Feet
0.877 Acres

LOT 13
40826.9 Sq. Feet

0.937 Acres

2 0 '  FRONT  YARD  S
ETBACK

2 0 '  FRONT  YARD  SET BACK

6' SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

18.0' EVERGREEN
BUFFER EASEMENT

10.0' IRR. PIPELINE
EASEMENT PER

REC. #636443

WATER WELL &
UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANKE
EASEMENT PER
REC. #592672

18.0' EVERGREEN
BUFFER EASEMENT

10.0' IRRIGATION
EASEMENT FOR
FELDMAN & HOA

DITCHES

IRRIGATION
DITCH & POND

EASEMENT

10.0' UTILITY
EASEMENT FOR

TOWN OF PAONIA
WATER LINE

42.0'
R.O.W.

STOP

SPEED
LIMIT

20

DEAD
END

NO
OUTLET

15.0' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

40.5' RETENTION
POND EASEMENT

8.0' TRAIL
EASEMENT

15.0' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20.0' SHARE
ACCESS EASEMENT

15.0' IRRIGATION
EASEMENT FOR

HOA DITCH

10.0' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15.0' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

15.0' IRRIGATION
EASEMENT FOR
FELDMAN DITCH

10.0' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10.0' UTILITY
EASEMENT

POTENTIAL CONFLICT BETWEEN
EXISTING WATERLINE AND EXISTING
MANHOLE - LOCATION SHALL BE
VERIFIED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION
OF NEW INFRASTRUCTURE

R15.0
R15.0

25' x 25' EMERGENCY TURNAROUND
SHALL HAVE SAME SECTION ROAD
DESIGN AS ATLANTIC AVENUE
PER DETAIL 01/C8.0

PHASE B CONSTRUCTION

PHASE C CONSTRUCTION

PHASE LINE B & C

PHASE LINE B & C

20.0' UTILITY & IRRIGATION
EASEMENT

22.0' EMERGENCY ACCESS
EASEMENT

PHASE LINE A & B

PHASE LINE A & B

PHASE A
LOTS 1 & 2

PHASE B
LOTS 3 -9

PHASE B
LOTS 3 -9

PHASE C
LOTS 10-16

PHASE C
LOTS 10-16

PHASE A CONSTRUCTION

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING TREES OR TREELINE

DRAINAGE BASIN DELINEATION

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING WATER TAP STUB-OUT

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TAP STUB-OUT

SURVEY  SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 1.5" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND GAS

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

PROPOSED 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

100

PROJECT LEGEND

8"W

8"S

100

8''W8"W

GAS

8"S

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

C2.0

PROPOSED
SITE PLAN

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

1"
 =

 6
0'

1. BUILDING WITHIN FLOODPLAIN
1.1. THE LOWEST FLOOR OF THE STRUCTURE SHALL BE

ELEVATED TO MEET OR EXCEED THE BASE FLOOD
FLOOD (BFE) WITH A MINIMUM ONE (1) FOOT OF
FREEBOARD IN ORDER TO CONSTRUCT OR MAKE
IMPROVEMENTS IN THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN.

NOTES

183

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657921

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL DISTRICT #50

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK461, PG1002

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #578928

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAYTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #592416

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK440, PG1780

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOLING LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631996

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK788, PG826

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA COUNTY JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDHORST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK454, PG968

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARNOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #564623

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #630305

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631997

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PAONIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK876, PG24

AutoCAD SHX Text
& HOPS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657769

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELK LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE OF THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH FORK OF THE GUNNISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOI, REGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #701097

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERSIDE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERSIDE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAGNIAPPE PROPERTIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
AG GLOGAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'



8''W

8''W

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S
8''S

8''S

PRICE ROAD

ATLANTIC AVENUE

24" RCP CULVERT
I.E. IN = 5644.00' (TO BE FIELD VERIFIED)
I.E. OUT = 5641.00'
LENGTH = 40'

HOA DITCH

FELDMAN DITCH

24" RCP CULVERT
I.E. IN = 5631.50'
I.E. OUT = 5631.20'
LENGTH = 40'

30" RCP CULVERT
I.E. IN = 5623.80'
I.E. OUT = 5623.50'
LENGTH = 30'
INSTALL PER 03/C8.3

FELDMAN DITCH OUTFALL
(LOCATION OF EXISTING
PVC PIPE OUT FALL SHALL
BE FIELD VERIFIED - LOCATE PROPOSED
OUTFALL PER VERIFICATION)

HOA DITCH OUTFALL

BASIN I RETENTION
VOLUMEREQUIRED = 2,297 CF
VOLUMEPROVIDED = 3,655 CF
INSTALL PER 01/C8.3

BASIN II RETENTION
VOLUMEREQUIRED = 4,597 CF
VOLUMEPROVIDED = 5,860 CF
INSTALL PER 01/C8.3

25.0'
EMERGENCY

SPILLWAY

25.0'
EMERGENCY

SPILLWAY

USE EXISTING IRRIGATION
EASEMENT FOR NEW ACCESS
TO FELDMAN DITCH

FELDMAN DITCH

HOA DITCH

5645.68

5640.395638.35

5636.54

5635.00

5634.00

5634.00

5633.00
5632.00

5630.00

5628.77 5629.00

5629.44

5629.59

5627.00

5626.00

5625.00

5624.00

5623.97

5623.00

5619.00

5623.98

5638.975638.00

5637.00

5636.91

5636.005635.00

5634.00

5633.00

5632.00
5631.00

5630.00

5629.00

5628.00

5627.00

5626.00

5626.00

5625.48

5627.00

5626.44

5623.00

5620.00
5632.00

56
30

.3
9

5629.00

5628.00

5627.00

5626.00

5625.00

5633.00

5629.52

5629.00

5625.00 5624.00

HOA DITCH SHALL BE 1% SLOPE
OVER FELDMAN DITCH CULVERT
WITH D50 = 12" GROUTED RIPRAP
20' ABOVE AND BELOW.  WIDEN
HOA DITCH TO 3' WIDE AT
CULVERT CROSSING.

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING TREES OR TREELINE

DRAINAGE BASIN DELINEATION

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING WATER TAP STUB-OUT

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TAP STUB-OUT

SURVEY  SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 1.5" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND GAS

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

PROPOSED 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

100

PROJECT LEGEND

8"W

8"S

100

8''W8"W

GAS

8"S

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

C3.0

GRADING &
DRAINAGE

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

---
-

STORMWATER DETENTION AREA

NOTES:
1. ALL CULVERTS SHALL BE INSTALLED PER DETAIL

03/C8.3, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
2. HOA & FELDMAN DITCHES SHALL BE

CONSTRUCTED PER DETAIL 02/C8.3.

184

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657921

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL DISTRICT #50

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK461, PG1002

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #578928

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAYTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #592416

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK440, PG1780

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOLING LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631996

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK788, PG826

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA COUNTY JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDHORST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK454, PG968

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARNOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #564623

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #630305

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #631997

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PAONIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK876, PG24

AutoCAD SHX Text
& HOPS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #657769

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELK LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE OF THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH FORK OF THE GUNNISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCE MINOR SUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOI, REGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. #701097

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERSIDE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERSIDE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAGNIAPPE PROPERTIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
AG GLOGAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'



LOT 3
85986.7 Sq. Feet

1.974 Acres

LOT 2
56445.8 Sq. Feet

1.296 Acres

LOT 1
71040.9 Sq. Feet

1.631 Acres

LOT 4
42405.4 Sq. Feet

0.973 Acres

LOT 5
44370.1 Sq. Feet

1.019 Acres LOT 6
41649.1 Sq. Feet

0.956 Acres
LOT 7

52388.0 Sq. Feet
1.203 Acres

LOT 8
47864.7 Sq. Feet

1.099 Acres

LOT 10
49633.3 Sq. Feet

1.139 Acres

LOT 11
43533.6 Sq. Feet

0.999 Acres

LOT 12
47910.0 Sq. Feet

1.100 Acres

LOT 9
44548.2 Sq. Feet

1.023 Acres

8''S

8''W

8''W

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

PR
IC

E 
ROAD

℄ CURVE DATA
PI STA=6+36.42

Δ 064°48'12"
T=63.47

R=100.00
L=113.10

CH=107.17

℄ CURVE DATA
PI STA=8+87.36
Δ 073°50'09"
T=75.88
R=101.00
L=130.16
CH=121.34

℄ CURVE DATA
PI STA=11+79.81
Δ 034°09'05"
T=57.13
R=186.00
L=110.87
CH=109.23

℄ CURVE DATA
PI STA=2+78.30
Δ 036°27'41"
T=32.94
R=100.00
L=63.64
CH=62.57

LOT 14
43074.7 Sq. Feet

0.989 Acres

LOT 16
63159.2 Sq. Feet

1.450 Acres

LOT 15
38194.9 Sq. Feet

0.877 Acres

LOT 13
40826.9 Sq. Feet

0.937 Acres

8''W
8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

TIE ATLANTIC AVENUE
TO EXISTING PRICE ROAD
PER DETAIL 04/C8.0
(EXISTING SURFACE ELEVATIONS
SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED)

0.97%

1.34%

0.60%

0.60% 0.02%

-2.00% -0.82%

PVI STA. 3+60.40
EL = 5629.61
L = 75.00
K = 101.79
E = 0.07'

PVI STA. 13+24.89
EL = 5636.58
L = 45.76
K = 123.74
E = 0.02'

PVI STA. 2+27.45
EL = 5627.84
L = 100.16
K = 46.39
E = 0.27'

PVI STA. 10+06.53
EL = 5633.49
L = 200.00
K = 541.14
E = 0.09'

PV
C

 S
TA

 1
+7

7.
37

EL
 =

 5
62

8.
25

PV
T 

ST
A 

2+
77

.5
3

EL
 =

 5
62

8.
51 PV

C
 S

TA
 9

+0
6.

53
EL

 =
 5

63
2.

89

PV
T 

ST
A 

11
+0

6.
53

EL
 =

 5
63

4.
46

PV
C

 S
TA

 3
+2

2.
90

EL
 =

 5
62

9.
11

PV
T 

ST
A 

3+
97

.9
0

EL
 =

 5
62

9.
84

PV
C

 S
TA

 1
3+

02
.0

1
EL

 =
 5

63
6.

35

PV
T 

ST
A 

13
+4

7.
77

EL
 =

 5
63

6.
71

ST
A 

= 
0+

00
.0

0

EL
 =

 5
62

9.
84

STA = 0+11.00
EL = 5629.62

ST
A 

= 
14

+3
5.

72

EL
 =

 5
63

7.
24

ST
A 

= 
14

+9
0.

73

EL
 =

 5
63

7.
25

EXISTING GRADE

PROPOSED GRADE

EXISTING GRADE
PROPOSED GRADE

LO
W

 P
O

IN
T 

ST
A 

2+
15

.5
3

EL
 =

 5
62

8.
09

CUL-DE-SAC
CENTER

EXISTING GRADE

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING TREES OR TREELINE

DRAINAGE BASIN DELINEATION

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING WATER TAP STUB-OUT

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TAP STUB-OUT

SURVEY  SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 1.5" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND GAS

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

PROPOSED 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

100

PROJECT LEGEND

8"W

8"S

100

8''W8"W

GAS

8"S

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

ATLANTIC AVENUE
20 MPH DESIGN SPEED (LOCAL)

42' R.O.W. TYPICAL TWO-WAY ROADWAY SECTION (PUBLIC)

C4.0

ATLANTIC
AVENUE PLAN

& PROFILE

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

---
-

SCALE
HORIZONTAL: 1" = 60'

VERTICAL: 1" = 6'

185

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'



LOT 3
85986.7 Sq. Feet

1.974 Acres

LOT 2
56445.8 Sq. Feet

1.296 Acres

LOT 1
71040.9 Sq. Feet

1.631 Acres

LOT 4
42405.4 Sq. Feet

0.973 Acres

LOT 5
44370.1 Sq. Feet

1.019 Acres LOT 6
41649.1 Sq. Feet

0.956 Acres
LOT 7

52388.0 Sq. Feet
1.203 Acres

LOT 8
47864.7 Sq. Feet

1.099 Acres

LOT 10
49633.3 Sq. Feet

1.139 Acres

LOT 11
43533.6 Sq. Feet

0.999 Acres

LOT 12
47910.0 Sq. Feet

1.100 Acres

LOT 9
44548.2 Sq. Feet

1.023 Acres

8''S

8''W

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S

GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS

G
AS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

PR
IC

E 
ROAD

LOT 14
43074.7 Sq. Feet

0.989 Acres

LOT 16
63159.2 Sq. Feet

1.450 Acres

LOT 15
38194.9 Sq. Feet

0.877 Acres

LOT 13
40826.9 Sq. Feet

0.937 Acres

8''W
8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

MH-12
STA. 15+32

MH-11
STA. 11+79

MH-10
STA. 9+21

MH-8
STA. 6+65

MH-7
STA. 6+02EXISTING MH-6

STA. 2+45

SANITARY SEWER
SERVICE, TYP.

MH-9
STA. 8+52

150°

152°

139°

148°

148°

@ 0.60%

M
H

-7
St

a 
6+

01
.5

4
R

im
 E

l =
 5

63
0.

9

M
H

-8
St

a 
6+

64
.7

2
R

im
 E

l =
 5

63
1.

3

@ 0.40%

M
H

-1
0

St
a 

9+
21

.0
7

R
im

 E
l =

 5
63

2.
9

@ 0.40%

M
H

-1
1

St
a 

11
+7

9.
41

R
im

 E
l =

 5
63

5.
1

@ 0.40%

M
H

-1
2

St
a 

15
+3

1.
51

R
im

 E
l =

 5
63

7.
4

@ 0.40%

EL
 =

 5
61

8.
74

 O
U

T
EL

 =
 5

61
8.

94
 IN

270.12' of 8" SDR35 PVC

EL
 =

 5
62

0.
33

 O
U

T
EL

 =
 5

62
0.

53
 IN

347.00' of 8" SDR35 PVC

EL
 =

 5
62

0.
80

 O
U

T
EL

 =
 5

62
1.

00
 IN

67.00' of 8" SDR35 PVC
186.00' of 8" SDR35 PVC

EL
 =

 5
62

3.
43

 O
U

T
EL

 =
 5

62
3.

53
 IN

255.00' of 8" SDR35 PVC

EL
 =

 5
62

4.
93

 O
U

T

350.00' of 8" SDR35 PVC

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 M

H
-6

St
a 

2+
45

.4
1

R
im

 E
l =

 5
62

7.
9

@ 0.40%

STA. 7+86.78
6" FIRE HYDRANT
CROSSING

STA. 9+99.53
3/4" WATER SERVICE
CROSSING

STA. 13+23.69
3/4" WATER SERVICE
CROSSING

3/4" WATER SERVICE
CROSSING

18" MIN. CLEARANCE
BETWEEN WATER AND
SEWER.  IF LESS THAN
18" ENCASE PER TOWN
SPECIFICATIONS

EXISTING GRADE

PROPOSED GRADE

EL
 =

 5
62

2.
21

 O
U

T
EL

 =
 5

62
2.

41
 IN

@ 0.40%

EL
 =

 5
62

2.
21

 O
U

T
EL

 =
 5

62
2.

41
 IN

EL
 =

 5
62

2.
21

 O
U

T
EL

 =
 5

62
2.

41
 IN

65.00' of 8" SDR35 PVC

EL
 =

 5
62

1.
95

 IN
EL

 =
 5

62
1.

75
 O

U
T

M
H

-9
St

a 
8+

51
.7

7
R

im
 E

l =
 5

63
2.

5

END OF ROAD

STA. 11+58.22
3/4" WATER SERVICE
CROSSING

STA. 11+73.06
6" FIRE HYDRANT
CROSSING

5' MIN.
BURIAL

DEPTH, TYP.

18" MIN.
TYP.

CUL-DE-SAC
CENTER

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING TREES OR TREELINE

DRAINAGE BASIN DELINEATION

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING WATER TAP STUB-OUT

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TAP STUB-OUT

SURVEY  SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 1.5" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND GAS

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

PROPOSED 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

100

PROJECT LEGEND

8"W

8"S

100

8''W8"W

GAS

8"S

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

ATLANTIC AVENUE
SANITARY SEWER
PLAN & PROFILE

C5.0

SANITARY
SEWER PLAN

& PROFILE

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

---
-

SCALE
HORIZONTAL: 1" = 60'

VERTICAL: 1" = 6'

186

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'



LOT 3
85986.7 Sq. Feet

1.974 Acres

LOT 2
56445.8 Sq. Feet

1.296 Acres

LOT 1
71040.9 Sq. Feet

1.631 Acres

LOT 4
42405.4 Sq. Feet

0.973 Acres
LOT 5

44370.1 Sq. Feet
1.019 Acres

STREET ACREAGE
64427.5 Sq. Feet

1.479 Acres

TOTAL ACREAGE
882763.3 SQ. FT.

20.265 ACRES

LOT 6
41649.1 Sq. Feet

0.956 Acres

LOT 7
52388.0 Sq. Feet

1.203 Acres

LOT 8
47864.7 Sq. Feet

1.099 Acres
LOT 10

49633.3 Sq. Feet
1.139 Acres

LOT 11
43533.6 Sq. Feet

0.999 Acres

LOT 12
47910.0 Sq. Feet

1.100 Acres

LOT 9
44548.2 Sq. Feet

1.023 Acres

8''W

8''W

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S
8''S

8''S

PRICE ROAD

ATLANTIC AVENUE

LOT 14
43074.7 Sq. Feet

0.989 Acres

LOT 16
63159.2 Sq. Feet

1.450 Acres
LOT 15

38194.9 Sq. Feet
0.877 Acres

LOT 13
40826.9 Sq. Feet

0.937 Acres

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN STA 7+86.77
INSTALL:
1 - 8"X8"X6" TEE
2 - 8" GATE VALVES
1 - 6" GATE VALVE
1 - CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK

STA 11+73.06
INSTALL:
1 - 8"X8"X6" TEE
2 - 8" GATE VALVES
1 - 6" GATE VALVE
1 - CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK

FIRE HYDRANT
PER DETAIL 4,
5, & 6/C8.0, TYP.

INSTALL WATER
SERVICE LATERAL, TYP.

WATER METER PIT PER
DETAILS 03/C8.1, TYP.

STA 2+98.03
CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER MAIN
IN ACCORDANCE WITH TOWN OF
PAONIA PUBLIC WORKS STANDARDS
AND DIRECTOR

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

STA 15+35.43
INSTALL:
1 - 8"X6" 90° ELBOW
1 - 8" GATE VALVES
1 - 6" GATE VALVE
1 - CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING TREES OR TREELINE

DRAINAGE BASIN DELINEATION

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING WATER TAP STUB-OUT

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TAP STUB-OUT

SURVEY  SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 1.5" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND GAS

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

PROPOSED 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

100

PROJECT LEGEND

8"W

8"S

100

8''W8"W

GAS

8"S

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

C6.0

WATER
DISTRIBUTION

PLAN

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

---
-

187

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'



LOT 3
85986.7 Sq. Feet

1.974 Acres

LOT 2
56445.8 Sq. Feet

1.296 Acres

LOT 1
71040.9 Sq. Feet

1.631 Acres

LOT 4
42405.4 Sq. Feet

0.973 Acres
LOT 5

44370.1 Sq. Feet
1.019 Acres

STREET ACREAGE
64427.5 Sq. Feet

1.479 Acres

TOTAL ACREAGE
882763.3 SQ. FT.

20.265 ACRES

LOT 6
41649.1 Sq. Feet

0.956 Acres

LOT 7
52388.0 Sq. Feet

1.203 Acres

LOT 8
47864.7 Sq. Feet

1.099 Acres
LOT 10

49633.3 Sq. Feet
1.139 Acres

LOT 11
43533.6 Sq. Feet

0.999 Acres

LOT 12
47910.0 Sq. Feet

1.100 Acres

LOT 9
44548.2 Sq. Feet

1.023 Acres

8''W

8''W

8''S

8''S

8''S

8''S
8''S

8''S

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

G
AS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

PRICE ROAD

ATLANTIC AVENUE

LOT 14
43074.7 Sq. Feet

0.989 Acres

LOT 16
63159.2 Sq. Feet

1.450 Acres
LOT 15

38194.9 Sq. Feet
0.877 Acres

LOT 13
40826.9 Sq. Feet

0.937 Acres

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

FIRE HYDRANT

WATER UTILITY
SERVICE LATERAL, TYP.

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER MANHOLE, TYP.

EXISTING 8" SANITARY
SEWER LINE, TYP.

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
UTILITY LINE

UNDERGROUND GAS
UTILITY LINE

UNDERGROUND FIBER
OPTIC UTILITY LINE

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE
UTILITY LINE

SANITARY SEWER UTILITY
SERVICE LATER, TYP.

PROPOSED SANITARY
SEWER MANHOLE

COMMUNICATIONS
PEDESTAL, TYP.

ELECTRICAL
TRANSFORMER, TYP.

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

LOCATIONS OF EXISTING
UTILITIES SHALL BE FIELD

VERIFIED.  TIE-IN LOCATIONS
ARE CURRENTLY UNKNOWN

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING TREES OR TREELINE

DRAINAGE BASIN DELINEATION

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

EXISTING WATER TAP STUB-OUT

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TAP STUB-OUT

SURVEY  SET 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 1.5" CAP

SURVEY FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH 2" CAP

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND GAS

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED 8" WATER MAIN

PROPOSED 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER VALVE

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

100

PROJECT LEGEND

8"W

8"S

100

8''W8"W

GAS

8"S

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

C7.0

UTILITY PLAN

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

---
-

NOTE:
LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND
ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE ARE NOT FINAL.
COORDINATION WITH UTILITY OWNERS SHALL
DETERMINE THE FINAL LOCATIONS.

188

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'



NOTES:

1. THERE SHALL BE AN 18 INCH VERTICAL SEPARATION BETWEEN WATER AND SEWER LINES WHEN DIRECTLY OVERHEAD.
2. WATER AND/OR SANITARY SEWER LINES SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 2 FEET FROM THE EDGE OF THE CURB AND GUTTER.
3. ENCROACHMENT ONTO TOWN MAINTAINED RIGHT OF WAY SHALL FOLLOW CONDITIONS OF THE APPLICABLE

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT OR FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.
4. FOR FIRE HYDRANT LOCATION SEE DETAILS 4, 5, & 6 SHEET C8.0

CL

0.02'/FT 0.02'/FT

42' RIGHT OF WAY

SANITARY SEWER MAIN

22' ROADWAY

POINT OF CROWN

10'
SHOULDER

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10'
SHOULDER

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

62'

8' - 0"
MINIMUM

10'-0" MIN.

5' - 0"
MINIMUM

WATER MAIN

0.02'/FT

NOTES:
1. FIRE HYDRANT SHALL BE AS MANUFACTURED: MUELLER MODERN

CENTURION.
2. BRANCH PIPE SHALL BE PVC AWWA C900.
3. 6" GATE VALVE SHALL BE AWWA C500 2" SQUARE, OPEN

COUNTERCLOCKWISE.
4. MECHANICAL JOINT BOLTS SHALL BE CorTen OR STAINLESS

STEEL.
5. FIRE HYDRANTS WILL BE INSTALLED IN TRUE VERTICAL POSITION.
6. FIRE HYDRANTS TO BE LOCATED IN ROW OR 10 FOOT EASEMENT

ADJACENT TO ROW
7. INSTALLATION AND MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM TO TOWN OF

PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE.
8. TRACER WIRE IS REQUIRED ON ALL NEW WATER PIPE

INFRASTRUCTURE PER SUE REGULATIONS.  TRACER WIRE SHALL
BE NO. 12 GAUGE SOLID COPPER.

ANYTIME SITE WORK,
CONSTRUCTION, ROAD WORK, OR
ANY OTHER WORK CHANGES THE
GRADE OF THE FIRE HYDRANT,
THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE  FOR
THE WORK IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
ADJUSTING THE FIRE HYDRANT
TO STAY WITHIN COMPLIANCE.

36" MIN HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE
FROM ANY OBJECT

FIRE HYDRANT, PUMPER NOZZLE TO BE POINTED
TOWARDS FIRE TRUCK ACCESS

TRAFFIC FLANGE BETWEEN
2" - 6" ABOVE GRADE

VALVE BOX 6" GATE VALVE

1'-0"

MAIN

MJ MEGALUG
UNDISTURBED EARTH

CONCRETE SETTING SLAB
1'-3" X 1'3" X 4"

7 CU. FT. CRUSHED
STONE MIN.

BACKFILL COMPACTED
IN 6" LIFTS

5'-0" MIN.

MJ MEGALUG

CONCRETE THRUST
BLOCK

3000 P.S.I. CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKING

CL

42' RIGHT OF WAY

22' ROADWAY
10'

SHOULDER

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10'
SHOULDER

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

62'

7" MIN. CDOT CLASS 6 GRAVEL,
95% MODIFIED PROCTOR COMPACTED

4" MIN. ASPHALT

12" RE-COMPACTED SUBGRADE

11' TRAVEL LANE 11' TRAVEL LANE

FELDMAN DITCH
HOA DITCH

NOTES:

1. LOCATION SHOULD BE COORDINATED WITH PAONIA
INSIDE THE PAONIA TOWN LIMITS.

ASPHALT

R
/W

 L
IN

E

ED
G

E 
O

F 
PA

VE
M

EN
T

℄5'-0" TO 15'-0"

HYDRANT TO BE PLACED
WITH PUMPER NOZZLE

FACING THE TRAVEL LANE

DITCH 1'-0" MIN.

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

M
EN

T

NO OBSTRUCTIONS IN THIS AREA
(INCLUDING LANDSCAPING)

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

UTILITY EASEMENT

3'-0"

PROPOSED
HYDRANT

MINIMUM 10'-0"
BEYOND RADIUS

3'-0"3'-0"

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28
N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

C8.0

CIVIL
DETAILS

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

N.T.S.
STANDARD UTILITY LOCATIONS IN STREET CROSS-SECTION2

C8.0

TABLE 1 - MINIMUM DEPTH TO TOP OF LINE (FEET)*

COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRIC GAS STORM WATER** SANITARY

MINIMUM DEPTH TO TOP
OF LINE 3 2 2 (2.5 MAX) 2 5 8

TABLE 2 - MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION FOR PARALLEL UTILITIES (FEET)*

COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRIC GAS STORM WATER** SANITARY

COMMUNICATIONS 1 1 3 2 2 2

ELECTRIC 1 1 1 1 DEPTH OF WATER LINE
MINUS 4'

DEPTH OF SANITARY LINE
MINUS 4'

GAS 2 3 - 2 2 2

STORM 2 2 2 - 10 2

WATER *** *** 2 10 10 10

SANITARY *** *** *** 2 10 -

TABLE 3 - MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATION AT UTILITY CROSSINGS (FEET)*

COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRIC GAS STORM WATER SANITARY

COMMUNICATIONS 1 1 1 2 2 ABOVE 2

ELECTRIC 1 1 1 2 2 ABOVE 2

GAS 1 1 1 2 2 ABOVE 2

STORM 2 2 2 2 2 ABOVE 2

WATER 2 BELOW 2 BELOW 2 BELOW 2 BELOW 2 2 ABOVE

SANITARY 2 2 2 2 BELOW 2 2

* THESE DEPTHS ARE BASED ON 2018 UTILITY STANDARDS.  DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM DEPTHS WITH UTILITY PROVIDER FOR ANY UPDATES.
** INCLUDES, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, POTABLE, RAW WATER, PRESSURIZED RAW WATER AND RE-USE WATER.

* THESE DEPTHS ARE BASED ON 2018 UTILITY STANDARDS.  DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM DEPTHS WITH UTILITY PROVIDER FOR ANY UPDATES.
** INCLUDES, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, POTABLE, RAW WATER, PRESSURIZED RAW WATER AND RE-USE WATER.
*** HORIZONTAL SEPARATION IS NOT APPLICABLE, BECAUSE VERTICAL SEPARATION IS ACHIEVED.  FOR EXAMPLE, A SHALLOW COMMUNICATIONS LINE CAN BE LOCATED ABOVE A WATER

LINE AS LONG AS VERTICAL SEPARATION IS ACHIEVED.

* THE TABLE IS INTENDED TO BE READ BY FIRST SELECTING A ROW AND THEN A COLUMN.  FOR EXAMPLE: WATER IS REQUIRED TO BE PLACE TWO (2) FEET BELOW COMMUNICATIONS,
TWO (2) FEET AWAY FROM OTHER WATER LINES, AND TWO (2) FEET ABOVE SANITARY.
THESE DEPTHS ARE BASED ON 2018 UTILITY STANDARDS.  DEVELOPER/CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM DEPTHS WITH UTILITY PROVIDER FOR ANY UPDATES.

** INCLUDES, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, POTABLE, RAW WATER, PRESSURIZED RAW WATER AND RE-USE WATER.

N.T.S.
MINIMUM UTILITY DEPTHS, HORIZONTAL & VERTICAL SEPARATION3

C8.0N.T.S.
TWO-WAY ROAD SECTION (42' R.O.W.)1

C8.0

NOTES:

1. ROADWAY SHALL BE CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

N.T.S.
TYPICAL FIRE HYDRANT INSTALLATION LOCATION5

C8.0 N.T.S.
TYPICAL FIRE HYDRANT INSTALLATION6

C8.0N.T.S.
SAW-CUT & MILLING4

C8.0

EXISTING ASPHALT PROPOSED ASPHALT12" MIN. MILLING

1. THE SAWCUT SHALL BE FULL DEPTH AND 12" MINIMUM FROM EXISTING EDGE
OF ASPHALT.

2. THE DEPTH OF MILLING SHALL BE THE SAME AS THE THICKNESS OF THE TOP
LIFT OF ASPHALT: 2" MINIMUM.

3. THE WIDTH OF THE MILLING ARE SHALL BE A 12" MINIMUM, BUT CAN BE UP
TO THE FULL WIDTH OF THE EXISTING ASPHALT.

SAWCUT JOINT

189

18.



ALL TRAFFIC CASTINGS MUST BE CLASS 35 OR GREATER.

EXTENSION MUST BE USED TO BRING TO A DEPTH OF NO

SECTION VIEW

WATER

7
16" 11

8"

Manufacturer

MO/DAY/YR

Class 35

4"

2"

5 7
16"

7 5
16"

5
8"

NOTES:
1. "WATER" LETTERING MUST BE 1" RAISED (RECESSED

FLUSH)
2. VALVE COVER SHALL BE DOMESTICALLY CAST.
3. COVER MUST HAVE A MINIMUM WEIGHT OF 25 POUNDS.
4. COVER MUST BE CLASS 35 OR GREATER.
5. COVER MUST MEET OR EXCEED AASHTO H-20 LOAD

REQUIREMENTS.

CAST DATE

PLAN VIEW

USA

CAST IRON

2'

2'

NOTES:
1. VALVE BOX NOT TO CONTACT WATER MAIN
2. ALL TRAFFIC CASTINGS MUST BE CLASS 35 OR GREATER.
3. FOR ANY VALVES OVER 10' DEEP, A VALVE STEM

EXTENSION MUST BE USED TO BRING TO A DEPTH OF NO
MORE THAN 5', EXTENSION MUST BE A MINIMUM OF 1"
SOLID STOCK.

4. TOTAL VALVE BOX WEIGHT: MINIMUM OF 85 LBS.

75
8"

83
4"

91
2"

APPROVED METHOD FOR
EXTENSION OF VALVE BOX

11"
6"

63
4"

STANDARD VALVE
BOX TOP SECTION
TO BE SLIDE SECTION

SEE DETAIL 03/C8.1

NOTE: 2'X2'X6" CONCRETE PAD
REQUIRED ON ALL VALVES. NO PRECAST
CONCRETE DOUGHNUT ALLOWED.

DOMESTIC
CASTING

CONCRETE
PAD

FINAL
COURSE

USE 5" SOIL PIPE
FOR EXTENSIONS

TAMPED
BACKFILL

VALVE BOX
COVER

VALVE
BOX

VALVEWATER

MAIN

TAB-IN C.I. OR D.I.
PIPE GASKET

TAMPED BACKFILL

PAVEMENT

5"

51
2" - 55

8"

67
8" - 8"

75
8" - 81

2"
101

4" - 11"

STANDARD VALVE BOX
BOTTOM SECTION

1
4" MIN.

NOTES:
1. WATER METER SHALL BE BADGER METER RECORDALL DISC METER WITH RECORDALL TRANSMITTER REGISTER, AND ORION WATER

ENDPOINT
2. NO DIRECT TAPS ALLOWED.
3. METER BOX TO BE LOCATED IN R/W ADJACENT TO PROPERTY OR IN APPROVED EASEMENT ADJACENT TO R/W.
4. WHEN THE GRADE CHANGES ON EXISTING SERVICES,  A COPPER RESETTER CAN BE USED TO ADJUST TO GRADE. COPPER RESETTERS

ARE PROHIBITED ON NEW SERVICES.
5. CURB STOP BOX SHALL HAVE PLUG STYLE LID WITH PENTAGON BOLT, 1-1/4" STEEL UPPER SECTION, AND ARCH STYLE BASE. STEEL

STATIONARY ROD TO BE PROVIDED FOR CURB STOP OPERATION.
6. SERVICE LINES SHALL BE STUBBED ACROSS THE PROPERTY LINE THROUGH THE WIDTH OF THE UTILITY EASEMENT WITH THE END

SEALED WITH A WATERTIGHT SEAL AND MARKED FULL DEPTH WITH A 2 X 4 PAINTED BLUE AND BROUGHT TO GRADE.
7. BURIAL DEPTH SHALL CONFORM TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA MINIMUM BURIAL DEPTH FOR WATER LINES AND SERVICES.
8. TRACER WIRE IS REQUIRED ON ALL NEW WATER PIPE INFRASTRUCTURE PER SUE REGULATIONS.  TRACER WIRE SHALL BE NO. 12 GAUGE

SOLID COPPER.

INLET

R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

 L
IN

E W4 WABASH STYLE
DOUBLE LID

5'-0" MIN.

VARIES

SONOCO 20" DIAMETER AND
48" INCH TALL METER CAN

SERVICE PIPE TYPE K COPPER
TUBING CONFORMING TO
ASTM B-88-62 OR POLYBUTYLENE
CONFORMING TO ASTM AND NSF
STANDARDS FOR POTABLE WATER

INTERIOR SUPPORT BRACKET

BACKFLOW PREVENTION
DEVICE

5
8" x 3 4" WATER METER

#4 AWG GROUND CABLE
W/ GROUND CLAMP

10" MIN.
14" ±

ANGLE METER
VALVE

2" MIN.

BRASS FITTING, TYP.

16" x 8" x 4" SOLID CONCRETE
BLOCK AROUND BOTTOM
OF METER PIT

6" SAND BEDDING COURSE

WATER SERVICE
PIPE FROM

CURB STOP

STUBBED SERVICE

CURB STOP
AND BOX

TAP CORPORATION STOP
APPROXIMATELY 5° TO 15°
UP FROM HORIZONTAL
CENTERLINE OF WATER
MAIN PIPE

MAIN

TOWN APPROVED
CORPORATION STOP

16" x 8" x 4" SOLID
CONCRETE BLOCK

BRASS CURB
STOP

NEW SERVICE (PIPE
MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO TOWN CODE)

TO METER PIT

CAST DUCTILE
SERVICE SADDLE

SECTION A-A

6"

A A

 MANHOLE FRAME AND
COVER

NEW MANHOLES USE AN APPROVED SEALANT
BETWEEN FRAME AND MANHOLE TOP
SECTION WHEN SECURING FRAME TO
MANHOLE TO PROVIDE A WATER TIGHT SEAL

ECCENTRIC M.H. CONE MAY BE
USED ON 8", 10" AND 12" SEWER
MAINS. MANHOLE CONE AND
BARREL SECTIONS SHALL BE PER
ASTM STANDARDS

"O" RING SEAL
OR RAM-NECK

RUBBER BOOT

LATERAL INVERT SHALL NOT BE
LOWER THAN MAIN SPRINGLINE.
MANHOLE SHALL BE 2' ABOVE 100
YEAR FLOOD PLAIN.
WHEN MANHOLE TOPS ARE IN
EXCESS OF 3' ABOVE GRADE.
OUTSIDE STEPS MUST BE
PROVIDED.  IN NON TRAFFIC AREAS,
TOP OF FRAME AND COVER SHALL
BE INSTALLED A MIN OF 1' ABOVE
FINISHED GRADE.

CONCRETE BASE, 3500 PSI

MIN 9" COMPACTED #67 STONE
BASE TO BE INSTALLED UNDER
NEW MANHOLE.

2'-0" MIN.

VARIABLE

12" MAX.

5"

4"

6"

9"

15" - 18"

4' MIN.

SHELF
SLOPE 60°

4000 PSI STRENGTH CONCRETE
5" MIN.

3' MIN.
&

5' MAX.

4

6

8

10

12

CONCRETE SHALL BE 3,000 P.S.I. MIX.

NOTES:
1. FITTING SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH A MINIMUM 4 MIL

PLASTIC.
2. NO CONCRETE SHALL COVER BOLTS OR GLANDS.
3. PIPE DIAMETERS BEYOND 12 INCHES SHALL UTILIZE A

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER'S SEALED DESIGN CONSISTING
OF RESTRAINED JOINT PIPE OR BLOCKING.

UNDISTURBED
EARTH

221
2° BEND90° BEND 45° BEND 111

4° BEND

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

2
3

3
4

1.0

3
4

1
2

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
2

2
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

1
3

NOMINAL PIPE
DIAMETER INCHES

TEES & DEAD
ENDS

*MINIMUM CONCRETE BLOCKING (C.Y.)

*

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28
N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

C8.1

CIVIL
DETAILS

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

N.T.S.
VALVE BOX INSTALLATION AND EXTENSION 1

C8.1 N.T.S.
5 1/4" VALVE BOX DROP LID WITH 4" SKIRT2

C8.1

N.T.S.
WATER SERVICE CONNECTION4

C8.1

N.T.S.
STANDARD 3/4" WATER SERVICE METER PIT3

C8.1

N.T.S.
STANDARD REACTION BLOCKING5

C8.1 N.T.S.
STANDARD PRECAST SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE6

C8.1

190

18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER



PROPOSED PIPELINE OVER EXISTING PIPE

C

PIPE
EXIST

PIPELINE
PROPOSED

PROPOSED PIPELINE UNDER EXISTING PIPE

6" 6"PIPE
O.D.

EXIST
PIPEL

LC CL

LC

NOTE:
NO ENCASEMENT REQUIRED FOR SPACE GREATER THAN 18"
FOR WATER LINES

FLOWABLE FILL
FULL TRENCH
WIDTH

1" THICK
COMPRESSIBLE
JOINT FILLER
MATERIAL

12"
MIN

6" MIN
18" MAX

.3 .3

6" MIN
18" MAX

PROPOSED
PIPELINE

MANHOLE FRAME AND COVERCOVER 120 LBS. MINIMUM

R

DAM E N UI

ES EW

SA

RT AIAN
S Y

23 1/2" 21"

1"

2 3/4"

NOTES:
1. ALL MANHOLE FRAMES SHALL BE

DOMESTICALLY CAST.
2. FRAME SHALL BE A MINIMUM WEIGHT

OF 182 LBS. WITHIN PUBLIC ROW AND
160 LBS.    WITHIN EASEMENTS.

3. COVER SHALL WEIGH A MIN. OF 120
LBS.

4. ALL MANHOLE FRAMES OUTSIDE OF
PAVED SURFACES SHALL BE BOLTED
TO THE CONE SECTION OR RING WITH
A MINIMUM OF 4 BOLTS PER FRAME.

1" VENT HOLE

BUTYL-NEK OR APPROVED
SEALANT BETWEEN FRAME

AND COVER

5
8" X 3" LAGSHIELD IN HOLE DRILLED
INTO CONE OR RING WITH ANCHOR
SUNK TO DESIGN DEPTH AND 38" X 3"
HOT DIPPED GALVANIZED LAG BOLT
AND WASHER.

.1

2.8 2.5

.3

25 1
16"

23 11
16"

22"

25 15
16"

33 14"

1"

7 12"

1"

SECTION

PLAN

A

S

M

S

DA E NI SU A

EWE R

AIN T YR

NOD
OT

ECAPSDE

I N
FN

OC

EN
TE

R

REGNAD

PERMI T REQUI RED

MA N U F A C T U R E R

2'-0"
TYP.

TOTAL CHIMNEY
NOT TO

EXCEED 11"

STANDARD MANHOLE
FRAME AND COVER

3000 P.S.I. CONCRETE
ENCASEMENT

A.B.C.

PRECAST CONCRETE
SPACER (DONUT RINGS)
IN TRAFFIC AREAS ONLY.
DONUT RINGS NOT
ALLOWED IN EASMENTS.

STANDARD
MANHOLE

8"
MIN.

2"

COMPACTED
BACKFILL

ADJUST FLUSH WITH
FINAL GRADE

SPRING LINE

FINISHED

LC

GRADE

NOTES:
1. FOR TRENCHES REQUIRING SHORING AND BRACING, DIMENSIONS SHALL BE TAKEN

FROM THE INSIDE FACE OF THE SHORING AND BRACING.
2. NO ROCKS OR BOULDERS 4" OR LARGER TO BE USED IN INITIAL BACKFILL.
3. ALL BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL BE SUITABLE NATIVE MATERIAL.
4. BACKFILL SHALL BE TAMPED IN 6" LIFTS IN TRAFFIC AREAS, 12" IN  NON-TRAFFIC

AREAS.
5. TRACER WIRE IS REQUIRED ON ALL NEW SANITARY SEWER PIPE INFRASTRUCTURE

PER SUE REGULATIONS.  TRACER WIRE SHALL BE NO. 12 GAUGE SOLID COPPER.

UNDISTURBED SOIL
FINAL

BACKFILL

2'-0"
INITIAL

BACKFILL

TAMP WELL UNDER
BOTTOM HALF OF PIPE

HAUNCHING

6" O.D. OF PIPE 6"
MINIMUM SIDE
CLEARANCE

4" BEDDING

PIPE GRADE

#67 STONE

MIN. GRADE 1%

BARREL OF PIPE BEDDING
(CLASS II, III, OR IV)

1 PIECE OF PIPE

WHEN SEWER CLEAN OUT IS IN
PAVEMENT OR IMPERVIOUS SURFACE,
IT MUST BE INSTALLED INSIDE A VALVE
BOX  (OR MINI-MANHOLE) WITH COVER
LABELED "SEWER".

MAIN

SADDLE OR IN-LINE WYE
8",10" OR 12" TAPPING

1/16" OR 1/8" BEND

PAVEMENT OPTION

LI
N

E
PR

O
PE

R
TY

*SERVICE LATERAL MATERIAL AS REQUIRED

 45° SEWER
SADDLE

INSTALLATIONS BY
UTILITY CONTRACTORS
BEYOND THE PROPERTY
OR EASEMENT LINE
REQUIRE A "PLUMBING
UTILITY" PERMIT AND
ARE INSPECTED BY THE
PLUMBING INSPECTOR.
DO NOT BACKFILL PRIOR
TO INSPECTION.

MUST BE 2"
BELOW GRADE

4' Ø CONCRETE
COLLAR 6" THICK

FINISHED
GRADE

CAST IRON OR BRONZE
CLEAN OUT PLUG

4" D.I. OR
PVC PIPE

STUB-OUT PER TOWN
CODE, MARK WITH
GREEN PAINTED 2 x 4.

COMBINATION WYE AND
1
8 BEND (ONE PIECE)

NOTE:
THE FULL LENGTH OF THE SERVICE DITCH SHALL BE
COMPACTED IN 6" LIFTS WITH MECHANICAL TAMP.  ALL TAPS
WILL BE MADE USING MECHANICAL TAPPING MACHINE.  FOR
PVC INSTALLATIONS, SADDLE AND BEND MUST BE BEDDED
IN #67 STONE.  BEDDING AND HAUNCHING OF PIPE BARREL
MUST COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS OF DETAIL 06/C8.2

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28
N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

C8.2

CIVIL
DETAILS

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

N.T.S.
STANDARD MANHOLE COVER1

C8.2

N.T.S.
SANITARY SEWER CONCRETE ENCASEMENT FOR WATER LINE CROSSING4

C8.2 N.T.S.
STANDARD SANITARY SEWER TRENCHING6

C8.2

N.T.S.
STANDARD MANHOLE FRAME AND COVER WITHIN PAVEMENT2

C8.2

N.T.S.
TYPICAL SANITARY SEWER LATERAL CONNECTION5

C8.2

SHELF DEPTH = 0.8 D
D

PLAN

NOTES:

1. INVERT ELEVATION OF 12" LONG STUB AT THE INSIDE FACE OF MANHOLE
TO BE 1 1/4" (MIN.) HIGHER THAN EXISTING OUTLET INVERT ELEVATION.

2. THE CORE CUT HOLE SHALL BE MADE WITH EQUIPMENT SPECIALLY
DESIGNED TO CUT A SMOOTH HOLE WITHOUT SPALLING OR DAMAGE TO
THE SHELL OR STRUCTURE.

3. PIPE CONNECTIONS THROUGH MH WALLS SHALL BE MADE W/ GROUTING
RING (WS WATERSTOP) AS MANUFACTURED BY PRESS-SEAL GASKET
CORPORATION OR APPROVED EQUAL AND NON-SHRINK GROUT.

4. MH INVERT SHALL BE FORMED OUT OF MH BRICK. SHELF TO BE BUILT TO
0.8 OF THE DIAMETER OF PIPE EXITING THE MH.

SECTION A-A

A A

N.T.S.
CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE3

C8.2

CHISEL OUT EXISTING SHELF TO
FORM NEW CHANNEL.  CREATE

SMOOTH CHANNEL SURFACE

12" LONG STUBE

NEW PIPE

EXISTING INLET

EXISTING OUTLET

EXISTING MANHOLE

EXISTING SHELF
CORE CUT HOLE TO FORM MINIMUM

OPENING OF NEW PIPE "OD" + 2".
(SEE NOTE 3)

EXISTING MANHOLE

MIN. 12" LONG STUB

SEE NOTE NO. 3
REMOVE EXISTING SHELF
TO FORM NEW CHANNEL

EXISTING SHELF TO REMAIN

191

18.



3:1 MAX
SLOPE

3:1 MAX
SLOPE

SEE PLAN

SEE PLAN

BANK STABILIZATION
RIPRAP D50 = 9" CDOT CLASS 6 ROAD BASE

COMPACTED 4" BELOW
BOTTOM OF CULVERT
AND 6" ABOVE BOTTOM
OF CULVERT

CULVERT
(SEE NOTE 4)

UNDISTURBED SOIL

5.0' 2.5' 5.0'

12.5'

1.0' MIN.

2.5'

1.0'

2.3' 10'
A

A

SECTION A - A

RIPRAP
D50 = 9"

RIPRAP D50 = 9"

EMBANKMENT
PROTECTION

PAD SHALL BE
FULL DEPTH
UNDER CULVERT
INVERT

OUTLET INVERT

CHANNEL
BOTTOM

RIPRAP PAD
RIPRAP PAD
END VIEW

1
1

1
1 W

(SEE NOTE 3)

PL
O

T 
SC

AL
E:

A

6

5

4

3

2

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E
SY

M
BO

L
AP

PR
.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

.

D
W

N
 B

Y:
C

KD
 B

Y:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

R
EV

IE
W

ED
 B

Y:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 B

Y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

B C D E F G H

de
si

gn
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

is
io

n
L

.L
.C

.

C
on

su
lt

in
g 

E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
: 6

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t

M
A

IL
IN

G
: P

.O
. B

ox
 1

80
9 

P
ao

ni
a,

C
O

  8
14

28
 9

70
.5

27
.9

54
0

w
w

w
.o

di
se

an
et

.c
om

PA
O

N
IA

 R
IV

ER
BA

N
K 

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

H
O

O
D

PA
O

N
IA

, C
O

 8
14

28
N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

C8.3

CIVIL
DETAILS

Ap
ril

 1
5,

 2
02

1

R
B

R
B

LH

JR

AU
G

U
ST

 1
4,

 2
02

0
0

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

N.T.S.
STORMWATER RETENTION1

C8.3 N.T.S.
TYPICAL IRRIGATION DITCH SECTION 2

C8.3

1.5'
DECOMPACTED

SOIL
(IF REQUIRED)

3'

VARIES (SEE PLAN)

2

1

MAINTENANCE

FIRST YEAR AFTER PLANTING
· ADEQUATE WATER IS CRUCIAL TO PLANT SURVIVAL AND TEMPORARY IRRIGATION MAY BE

NEEDED UNLESS RAINFALL IS ADEQUATE UNTIL PLANTS MATURE
· INSPECT AFTER SIGNIFICANT RAIN EVENTS (E.G. >0.5 INCH) AS NEEDED
· PRUNE AND WEED TO MAINTAIN APPEARANCE
· REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS
· MOW FILTER STRIP/GRASS CHANNEL
· REPLACE VEGETATION WHENEVER THE PERCENT COVER OF ACCEPTABLE VEGETATION FALLS

BELOW 90 PERCENT OR PROJECT SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS ARE NOT MET. IF
VEGETATION SUFFERS FOR NO APPARENT REASON, CONSULT WITH HORTICULTURIST AND/OR
TEST SOIL AS NEEDED

· REPAIR ANY STRUCTURAL DAMAGE TO CHECK DAMS OR TIE-IN TO DOWNSTREAM CHANNEL
SEMI-ANNUALLY
· INSPECT INFLOW AND PRETREATMENT SYSTEMS FOR CLOGGING (OFF-LINE SYSTEMS) AND

REMOVE ANY SEDIMENT
· INSPECT FILTER STRIP/GRASS CHANNEL FOR EROSION OR GULLYING. SOD AS NECESSARY
· HERBACEOUS VEGETATION, TREES AND SHRUBS SHOULD BE INSPECTED TO EVALUATE THEIR

HEALTH AND REPLANTED AS APPROPRIATE TO MEET PROJECT GOALS
· REMOVE ANY DEAD OR SEVERELY DISEASED VEGETATION
ANNUALLY IN FALL
· INSPECT AND REMOVE ANY SEDIMENT AND DEBRIS BUILD-UP IN PRETREATMENT AREAS
· INSPECT INFLOW POINTS AND INFILTRATION SURFACE FOR BUILDUP OF ROAD SAND ASSOCIATED

WITH SPRING MELT PERIOD, REMOVE AS NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN INFILTRATION RATES AND
VOLUME CAPACITY, AND REPLANT AREAS THAT HAVE BEEN IMPACTED BY SAND/SALT BUILD UP

· CHECK STRUCTURAL STABILITY OF CHECK DAMS
ANNUALLY IN SPRING
· CUT BACK AND REMOVE PREVIOUS YEAR’S PLANT MATERIAL AND REMOVE ACCUMULATED

LEAVES IF NEEDED (OR CONDUCT CONTROLLED BURN WHERE APPROPRIATE)

2'

0.
5:

1 
M

AX

EXISTING GROUND

0.5:1 M
AX

VARIES, 2' MIN.

LONGITUDINAL SECTION

EMBANKMENT PROTECTION AND RIPRAP PADS

NOTES:

1. FOR ROCK OR OTHER INCOMPRESSIBLE
MATERIALS, THE TRENCH SHALL BE
OVEREXCAVATED A MINIMUM OF 6" AND
REFILLED WITH AGGREGATE MATERIAL AS
DIRECTED BY THE GEOTECHNICAL
ENGINEER.

2. BEDDING AND BACKFILL MATERIALS IN THE
PIPE ZONE SHALL BE COMPACTED AS
SPECIFIED BY THE GEOTECHNICAL
ENGINEER PRIOR TO BACKFILLING THE
REMAINDER OF THE TRENCH.

3. TOP WIDTH (W)  EQUALS 5 TIMES THE PIPE
DIAMETER OR THE WIDTH OF THE
EMBANKMENT SLOPE PROTECTION,
WHICHEVER IS GREATER.

4. SEE PLAN FOR CULVERT MATERIAL AND
SIZE.

RIP-RAP
D50 = 9" 6"

12"
2'

TOP OF BERM

EMERGENCY OVERSPILL
RIP-RAP SECTION

EMERGENCY
OVERSPILL
RIP-RAP
D50 = 9"

WIDTH
(SEE PLAN)

CROSS-SECTION

N.T.S.
CULVERT INSTALLATION3

C8.3

192

18.



RAW

KC

KC
W
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING, INC.

CILMORE OMPANY

406 Grand Avenue
P.O. Box 1652
Paonia, Colorado  81428

970.527-4200
970.527-4202
www.wilmorelandsurveying.com

PHONE

FAX

EMAIL kris@wilmorelandsurveying.com
SHEET 1 OF 2J20157 26 AUGUST 2020

ITEM 8

193

19.

TownClerk
Highlight



SHEET 2 OF 226 AUGUST 2020J20157
RAW

KC

KC

EMAIL kris@wilmorelandsurveying.com

FAX

PHONE

www.wilmorelandsurveying.com
970.527-4202
970.527-4200

Paonia, Colorado  81428
P.O. Box 1652
406 Grand Avenue

OMPANYILMORE C
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING, INC.
W

194

19.



195

19.

TownClerk
Highlight



196

19.



197

20.



198

20.



199

20.



200

20.



201

20.



202

20.



203

20.



204

20.



205

20.



206

20.



207

20.



208

21.



209

21.



210

21.



211

21.



212

21.



213

21.



214

21.



215

21.



216

21.



217

21.



218

21.



219

21.



220

21.



ITEM 11

221

22.

TownClerk
Highlight



222

22.



223

22.



224

22.



225

22.



226

22.



227

22.



228

22.



229

22.



230

22.



231

22.



232

22.



233

22.



234

22.



235

22.



236

22.



237

22.



238

22.



239

22.



240

22.



241

22.



242

22.



243

22.



244

22.



245

22.



246

22.



247

22.



248

22.



249

22.



250

22.



251

22.



252

22.



253

22.



254

22.



ITEM 12

255

23.

TownClerk
Highlight



256

24.



257

24.



258

24.



259

24.



260

24.



261

24.



262

24.



263

24.



264

24.



265

24.



266

24.



267

24.



268

24.



269

24.



270

24.



271

24.



272

24.



273

24.



274

24.



275

24.



276

24.



277

24.



278

24.



279

24.



280

24.



281

24.



282

24.



283

24.



284

24.



285

24.



286

24.



287

24.



288

24.



289

24.



290

24.



291

24.



292

24.



293

24.



294

24.



295

24.



296

24.



297

24.



298

24.



299

24.



300

24.



301

24.



302

24.



303

24.



304

24.



305

24.



306

24.



307

24.



308

24.



309

24.



310

24.



311

24.



312

24.



313

24.



314

24.



315

24.



316

24.



317

24.



318

24.



319

24.



320

24.



321

24.



322

24.



323

24.



324

24.



325

24.



326

24.



327

24.



328

24.



329

24.



330

24.



331

24.



332

24.



333

24.



334

24.



335

24.



336

24.



337

24.



338

24.



339

24.



340

24.



341

24.



342

24.



343

24.



344

24.



345

24.



346

24.



347

24.



348

24.



349

24.



350

24.



351

24.



ITEM 14

352

25.

TownClerk
Highlight



353

25.



354

25.



355

25.



356

25.



357

25.



358

25.


	Top
	1.	Roll Call
	ASF - Roll Call

	2.	ASF - Agenda Approval
	ASF - Agenda Approval

	3.	Minutes
	ASF - Minutes
	062220_PlanningMin_Draft

	4.	ASF - Riverbank
	ASF - Riverbank

	5.	Item 1_ Administrator Review, Recommendation, and Attachments A-D
	Updated_Riverbank Neighborhood_Admin Recommendation
	Updated Administrator Review Attachment A
	Updated Administrator Review Attachment B
	Updated Administrator Review Attachment C
	Updated Administrator Review Attachment D
	20210415 Riverbank Memo

	6.	Item 2_Applicant FINAL_ Submittal Document
	2_Applicant FINAL_ Submittal Document

	7.	Item 3_Applicant Final Submittal_Summary of Administrator Comments
	3_Applicant Final Submittal_Summary of Administrator Comments

	8.	Item 4_Attorney Letter_r.e.SGM Review
	4_Attorney Letter_r.e.SGM Review

	9.	Item 5_RiverbankSubdivisionEngReview
	5_RiverbankSubdivisionEngReview

	10.	Item 6_Riverbank Neighborhood_Responses To SGM Review
	6_Riverbank Neighborhood_Responses To SGM Review

	11.	Item 7_Community Input
	7_Community Input 1_Redacted
	Community Input #2_Redacted

	12.	Application Item 1 - Geotechnical Spoils Report
	Application Item 1 - Geotechnical Soils Report_2of3
	Application Item 1 - Geotechnical Soils Report_3of3
	Application Item 1 - Geotechnical Soils Report_1of3

	13.	Application Item 2 - Sketch Plan
	Application Item 2 - Sketch Plan

	14.	Application Item 3 - Property Owner List
	Application Item 3 - Property Owner List

	15.	Application Item 4 - Application
	Application Item 4 - Application

	16.	Application Item 5 - Covenants for Neighborhood_Redacted
	Application Item 5 - Covenants for Neighborhood_Redacted

	17.	Application Item 6 - Development Review
	Application Item 6 - Development Review (Referral Letters From Companies)
	Application Item 6.5 - Development Review_PFD#2
	Application Item 6.5 - Development Review_DeltaCounty

	18.	Application Item 7 - Engineering Updated Plat
	Application Item 7 - Engineering UPDATED PLAT_Paonia Riverbank

	19.	Application Item 8 - Preliminary & Final Plan
	Application Item 8 - Prelim Plan_1of2
	Application Item 8 - Prelim Plan_2of2
	Application Item 8 - Final Plat

	20.	Application Item 9 - Subdivision Improvements Agreement_Redacted
	Application Item 9 - Subdivision Improvements Agreement_Redacted

	21.	Application Item 10 - Title Commitment_Redacted
	Application Item 10 - Title Commitment_Redacted

	22.	Application Item 11 - Drainage Report
	Application Item 11 - Drainage Report

	23.	Application Item 12 - Engineering Costs
	Application Item 12 - Engineering Costs

	24.	Application Item 13 - Traffic Impact
	Application Item 13 - Traffic Impact_Redacted

	25.	Application Item 14 - Proof of Ownership
	Application Item 14 - Proof of Ownership

	Bottom

